De Program The

Progressive Program



A Primer to Progressivism

History, Strategies, Rules and Applications

Contents

I. The Debate: Equality or Individual Liberty	3
II. The Progressive Playbook 101	8
Principles & Guidelines	8
Political Correctness	8
Identity Politics	9
Multiculturalism	10
Concept Creep	11
Hate Speech	12
III. 20th Century Progressive Founders	15
Cloward and Piven	15
Saul Alinsky	17
Herbert Marcuse & Repressive Tolerance	19
George Soros	20
The Progressive's Dirty Bomb: Coronavirus	25
IV. Preaching Progressives Project: The Sixth Tactic	29
Inconsequential Truths	29
Racism	29
Voter Suppression	32
Covington Kids	33
Hate Crime	34
Social Justice	35
V. Progressive Crimes Go Unpunished	41
Russian Collusion	41
Unpunished Progressive Crimes	45
VI. Progressive Ruling Class Applications	46
Universal Healthcare	46
Open Borders	48
Climate Change	57
VII. Big Government vs Little Government	60
Political Witticisms	67
Books	69

I. The Debate: Equality or Individual Liberty

People often conflate equality with individual liberty, believing the two are congruent or can co-exist, but the two are mutually exclusive. Some mistakenly think equality is inherent in the U.S. constitution and feel a moral obligation to pursue and/or defend it. America's constitution provides individuals with equal protection and equal opportunity, not equality or equal outcomes. Taking property from one and giving it to another robs individuals of their wealth, freedom, and liberty. Forced acquisition, transfer, is totalitarian and is why all Progressive/Marxist governments end as fascist police states.

Many believe the French and American Revolutions were fought for similar principles. This could not be further from the truth. The French fought for social justice and economic equality while Americans fought for independence and individual liberty. The leaders of the French revolution took the heads of the monarchy and upcoming revolutionaries took the heads of the French revolutionary leaders. Americans fought a war for independence whereas the French had riots and bloodbaths. In the last 230 years Americans have thrived under free markets and individual liberty while the French government has failed many times, suffering under a socialist government and economy. Progressive tactics and ideology liken to the French revolution.

Walter E. Williams, Professor of Economics at George Mason University, defines liberty as a peaceable, voluntary exchange without interference by others. Williams claims this voluntary exchange is a recent phenomenon in America, that the norm throughout most of mankind was arbitrary abuse and control by others. Before capitalism, the free market system, the road to riches was through plunder and the enslavement of our fellow man. With the free market system, the road to enrichment is pleasing our fellow man. Adam Smith's capitalism was based on the principle that the exchange of the products of one's best efforts for the products of another's best efforts required people to act virtuously.

Free markets create new wealth and opportunity while Progressivism/Marxism redistributes limited finite resources. Progressivism/Marxism is a finite system that destroys the free market initiative through redistribution. Capitalism, free markets, are structured to peacefully meet the needs of each individual while socialism promotes malcontent and violence. The famous economist Milton Friedman said: "Those people who put equality before liberty are not likely to have much of either. Those people that put liberty before equality are likely to have a large measure of both." Williams says there is a temptation among all human beings to live at the expense of somebody else (e.g., farmer, businessman wanting subsidies, poor person wanting welfare, healthcare). If someone held a gun to your head to take your property, they would go to jail. But if someone lobbies Washington to pass a law to take your property, it is called compassion and legalized. Sighting UC Berkeley as an example, Williams says that we are losing our liberty and free speech. Ronald Reagan said: "Every time Congress meets; we lose a little bit of our liberty."

Progressives constantly tout numerous inequities, then demand government intervention. Free markets are blind to inequities and foster equality. People of all ethnicities and/or economic strata may have a hand in a product's development before it is acquired by the consumer. Some income inequality can be attributed to people who have found better ways to please their fellow man more than others (e.g., Bill Gates' Microsoft.) Government intervention, with the creation of occupational license laws, causes other inequities. For example, A NYC taxi medallion cost \$700K, which denies thousands of people the freedom to engage in the taxi business while making the individuals in government who oversee the redistribution rich.

Williams says the only kind of equality that is consistent with liberty is equality before the law, that any other equality is inconsistent with liberty. To save our nation from the same destruction that has occurred in other great societies, we need to start teaching the moral superiority of limited government and personal liberty. According to the Independence Institute, because of capitalism, half the world's population has risen to middle class status, most people over 15 are literate, air is cleaner, sanitation is rising, and homicide has fallen to its lowest level in recorded history. However, under Marxism, everyone is equally oppressed, or as Churchill said, equally miserable.

The Founding Fathers believed that individuals have inalienable rights of life, liberty, and the pursuit of happiness, and that these rights are endowed by their creator and precede government. For this reason, they structured the constitution to protect the inalienable rights of individuals and minorities. Contrary to progressive beliefs, the government cannot bestow additional inalienable rights or take inalienable rights without just cause. The purpose of our government is to secure those individual sovereign rights, not to provide social justice (e.g., healthcare, income equality, education, etc.).

James Madison warned about the tyranny of the majority, yet the Progressives eagerly push toward a majority rule. To avoid becoming a raw democracy or a mob, our form of government, as established by the U.S. Constitution, is a republic. It is designed to prevent a tyranny of one (a despot,) a few (an oligarchy) or a majority (a mob). The Constitution is structured so every individual is sovereign but has no just authority. The majority is a just majority that protects but cannot deprive an individual and/or the minority of their sovereign rights: the 51%-majority cannot take the rights of the 49%-minority.

Progressives pretend to embrace the Constitution while they are abolishing it (e.g., electoral college, free speech, free markets, gun laws, citizenship, etc.) Progressivism innately needs to void and/or redistribute our sovereign rights which the Founders would consider injustice or unjust law. The Progressive Movement is inherently anti-American and must shed the constitutional constraints of government to implement what they believe to be the righteous works of modern-day social sciences. They believe that constitutional constraints are standing in the way of implementing their utopia and their century-long academic genius. Progressives

believe that they need to rid the country of the constraints of the constitutional structure, the notion of enumerated powers and the idea that the federal government can only exercise the powers delegated to it.

Progressive judges claim that they have been ordained to redefine the Constitution, that the Constitution is whatever they interpret it to be (e.g., N. California U.S. District Court Judge Jon Tiger). When necessary they impute new language into the Constitution, assigning it new meaning (e.g., when considering abortion laws, life now means privacy). Dr. John C. Eastman, one of the leading U.S. constitutional authorities, believes that people are tiring of unelected judges controlling their lives and policy decisions to the point that we are no longer allowed to govern ourselves (e.g., building a wall, ending sanctuary cities, DACA, asylum, etc.). He also believes, unlike progressives that advocate for activist judges, that Trump is not trying to put conservatives or liberals on the court, but constitutionalists - judges that follow the law to where it leads and enforce a higher law rather than try to make law.

John Marini, author of "Unmasking the Administrative State," claims the "administrative state" is the government established bureaucracy. Marini believes elected officials have relinquished their authority to bureaucrats who relieve them of making political decisions on things such as law. Laws are no longer deliberated; they are now made by so called experts that are usually recruited from progressive universities. Decisions that used to be made in civil society by "political rule" are now in the hands of the bureaucrat's "rational rule". Supposedly, their authority is established by the "rational knowledge" of the social and hard sciences of university disciplines. Our bureaucracies have become extensions of progressive universities. To thrive, bureaucracies need to expand and devour our form of constitutional government that benefits the progressive totalitarian state. These so-called experts of "rational knowledge" are replacing our civil society's "political rule", our principled human decision-making process, with "rational rule". Progressive bureaucratic agencies grew under Franklin D. Roosevelt but mushroomed under Linden B. Johnson's progressive "Great Society".

Citizens have become spectators of their own political process, unaware of the governmental procedures that no longer represent the people but rather factions of special interest (e.g., Chamber of Commerce, AFL-CIO, etc.) Instead of a localized, decentralized, representative government, citizens now have a distant, centralized, unrepresentative, Washington D.C.-based government. Washington D.C. and it's ruling class are now synonymous to the 1700's golden streets of Versailles and its snuff-sniffing ruling elite prior to the French revolution. As "rational rule" expands over "political rule" it expands the progressive ruling class, their bureaucracies, and the progressive totalitarian government. People have become unaware of their own sovereignty and their decision making has been turned over to people that are unelected and unaccountable. The French philosopher Tocqueville, in his 1835 work "Democracy in America", said: "centralized administrations is the form of despotism that democratic societies are going to have to fear". Marini claims that the progressive administrative state is democratic tyranny.

Conservative writer Mark Levin believes that the purpose of the progressive's massive 4th branch of government is to use the bureaucracy and unelected judges to resist the opposition party when they're elected, and to support the popular vote and expand the bureaucracy when they get elected. It is heads they when, tails you lose philosophy. Levin believes Trump's "political rule" is breaking the stranglehold of the progressive's bureaucratic "rational rule" (e.g., global corporate elite, special interest, media, RINOs, etc.); that looking out for the interest of the people and the county's welfare, instead of the progressive's ruling class welfare, draws incoming wrath and ire from the progressive establishment.

For example, Trump's efforts to put economic restraints on China, Russia, and Iran to prevent their aggression, atrocities and war is resisted by the global corporate establishment. Part of the establishment's resistance strategy is to enlist both their current and former puppet politicians and bureaucrats, the future global corporate elites. For profit, Britain's former Prime minister David Cameron has joined China's Belt and Road Initiative that is consuming poorer nations and forcing western nations to have an unhealthy reliance on China's policies and technology. The Russian pipeline to Germany, Nord Stream, was set up by former Chancellor Gerhard Schroder and authorized by German Chancellor Angela Merkel. This strengthens the Russian economy, their military capabilities, Germany's reliance on Russian energy, while the U.S. pays to defend Germany against Russian aggression. To continue trading illicitly with Iran European companies have developed a financial system, INSTEX, to circumvent U.S. banking. French President Macron supports this circumvention so Atos Information Technology, a company acquisitioned by his former bank partners, Rothschild & Cie Banque, can continue selling information technologies to Iran. This costs the U.S. militarily in blood and treasure while Iran spreads terrorism throughout Europe and the Middle East. For profit the NBA and Wall Street align themselves with China's human atrocities against Western interests while they take the moral high ground and rail against Trump on issues such as transgender, immigration, race, etc.

Progressives constantly try to project their ideology onto the right by comparing conservatives to Hitler and Mussolini. The fact is the conservative right champions the other end of the spectrum: individual rights and liberty. Our republic was founded on the principle that individual rights should not be sacrificed for the collective good. Sacrificing individual rights for the collective good, or "general will", is the Progressive/Marxist ideology. Progressives/Marxists believe that all rights are subject to the state (e.g., men as communities are supreme over men as individuals, from each according to his ability to each according to his needs.)

Hitler was a National Socialist, Lenin's communism was Marxists and Mussolini was a Fascist. Socialism, Marxism and Fascism are the core beliefs of the present-day anti-capitalist Progressive movement as evidenced by the ideologies of Bernie Sanders, Elizabeth warren, Nancy Pelosi, The Squad, and others on the left. The Progressive movement is comprised of Marxist, Socialist, Fascist and Communist organizations (e.g., Antifa, Black lives Matters, la Raza, Moveon.org, Occupy Wall Street, SEIU, Socialist Worker, Voice of Revolution, etc.) Mussolini's

Fascist Manifesto is literally the doctrine of collectivism, the progressive ideology. Throughout history, collectivism has only proven to benefit the ruling class social elite, Venezuela being its latest victim.

Communism takes total ownership of party, social class and means of production, whereas Fascism allows ownership, but government representation controls the means of production through national councils. Like Communism, Fascism also advocates for a totalitarian one-party state. For example, blackmailing our country, Speaker of the House Nancy Pelosi tried to hold the \$2 trillion CARES Act stimulus bill hostage until she could get her fascist polices enacted. Hiding behind the political correctness of diversity, she tried to insert government-controlled corporate diversity boards, or national councils, as well as Union funds and Union controls into the CARES Act. Diversity boards would completely control the corporate management of salaries, hiring practices of employees, cost, profits and means of production. Corporations would be forced to give the government a complete statistical analysis of their operations on a quarterly basis and be beholding to Nancy and the progressive party. Pelosi also tried to create a totalitarian one-party fascist progressive state by trying to insert nationalized federal election laws into the CARES bill (e.g., early voting, same day voter registration, mail in voting, vote harvesting, etc.) which benefit the progressive party. Nancy has tried to control the presidency, senate, and Judicial branches of government. Now she wants control of our means of production. Nancy frequently boasts about her Italian heritage. Could she be an agent for fascism?

Joel Kotkin, author of "The Human City", who describes himself as a lifelong liberal, claims the progressive left's long-term agenda is planning a two-tier society: the ultra-rich class and the peasant class. Kotkin claims the progressives and their global corporate elites are essentially using the communist city planning document to bring back a form of feudalism, that progressives are not about upward mobility anymore. They keep people in place using high taxes, redistribution, regulations, social engineering, etc., making it impossible for the hardworking, blue-collar workers to move up to the middle class. Using climate change to give credence to their plan, they are creating a class of workers that have no expectations, a class with no children, no houses, living in small apartments, in small spaces, with no cars. They talk diversity but impose uniformity.

Americans need to decide if they want to forfeit their individual liberty, their free markets, their free and open society for Progressive/Marxist tyranny. Do they advocate for the progressive establishment, the global corporate elite, who profit from their demise? Do they advocate for the destruction of their culture, constitution, and way of life? Do they advocate for forced acquisitions, transfers of their personal wealth and individual liberty? Do they advocate for the PC global corporate elite's corrupt puppet politicians to centralize and socially engineer their nation and neighborhoods? Progressives believe that they have been ordained to control what you can think, do, and say, that their politically correct mind control is what is best for them

and you. Resist and they will use Saul Alinsky's "Rules for Radicals", the progressive bible, to ridicule, boycott and, if necessary, violently attack you. Regarding Socialism, the following said:

Winston Churchill: "Socialism is a philosophy of failure, the creed of ignorance and the gospel of envy, its inherent virtue is the equal sharing of misery."

Vladimir Lenin: "The goal of socialism is communism."

Ben Franklin, regarding the constitution: "...that the document be administered a number of years until the people reject liberty in favor of tyranny."

Margaret Thatcher: "Socialists cry 'power to the people' and raise the clenched fist as they say it. We all know what they really mean - power over people, power to the State."

Voltaire: "In general, the art of government consists of taking as much money as possible from one class of citizens to give to another."

II. The Progressive Playbook 101

Principles & Guidelines

Below are a few of the principles and guidelines that the progressives use to control your behavior and implement their Marxist agenda. As noted, progressives need to deconstruct and destroy functioning governments to replace them with Marxism. Their wish list is to devour free societies, free markets, free speech, individual liberty, and limited government. They need to destroy the constitution, the electoral college and state elected senates. They need to pack the courts with activist judges, expand the bureaucratic 4th branch of government and create an Athenian democracy of a 51% popular vote that opposes our republic. They prefer everyone make \$20K per year rather than the poor make \$50K and the rich make \$500K. Their noble end that justifies their means is radical equalitarianism. Socialism relies on malcontent and is an all-incumbent, preplanned society with finite economies and knowledge. It eventually becomes a police state controlled by an elite ruling class.

Political Correctness

Contrary to popular belief, modern communism began prior to Marx and Engels and can be traced back to the French Revolution, where political correctness is believed to have begun. After the bloody chaos in which many of the revolutionary organizers succumbed to their own fate on the guillotine, the French aristocrats imposed political correctness to regain societal control. The term first appeared in Marxist-Leninist vocabulary following the Russian Revolution of 1917. It was used to describe obedience to the policies and principles of the Communist party and to their party line.

In the setting of George Orwell's novel, "Nineteen Eighty-Four", Oceania was a fictional totalitarian state. To meet Oceania's ideological requirements of English Socialism (Ingsoc) the ruling Party created a language called Newspeak. Newspeak was a controlled language of

restricted grammar and limited vocabulary, meant to limit freedom of thought (i.e., personal identity, self-expression and free will) which threatens the ideology of the régime of Big Brother and the Party who have criminalized such concepts into thoughtcrime, as contradictions of Ingsoc orthodoxy.

Today, the progressives claim that political correctness prevents offensive language toward race, gender, sexual orientation etc. Often the progressives perceive offensive language where none exists. The actual purpose of progressive political correctness is to censor, curtail freedom of speech, limit public debate and control thought processes (e.g., immigrant-invaders, illegal alien, anchor baby, lynching, Covington kids, Kavanaugh hearing, etc.) Political correctness favors the progressive's chances of acquiring complete political and behavioral control and demonstrates obedience to the policies and principles of the Progressive Party and to their party line.

Political correctness is embedded in all communist movements including the old Soviet Union. The Maoist Communist Party of China controlled speech and shamed one into submission or compliance by using what they called "struggled circles". Progressives practice this today during their demonstrations, i.e., once their victim is targeted, they chant "shame on you" or "shame, shame, shame". The Communist Chinese also participated in self-deprecation; a ritual called Maoist auto critique. This is likened to today's white males considered by the progressives to be oppressors even though they are in their own country. White people must drink the progressive guilt Kool-Aid, degrade, and flagellate themselves with mantras such as 'white privilege'. Strangely, this deconstruction of social order does not seem to be prevalent in the countries where the invaders come from. There is no claim of 'brown privilege' in Mexico, 'black privilege' in Ethiopia, 'yellow privilege' in China, etc.

Some see political correctness as more than just controlled thought speech - more of a psychology, a mentality, a way of life - one that says you should strive for mediocrity, the status quo, rather than greatness. Success should be resented rather than admired, i.e., achievers are considered the enemy and non-achievers the victims. Among other anti-American hostilities aimed at eroding American values, destroying our way of life, and maintaining the status quo are the progressive avocations of open borders and declining educational standards.

Identity Politics

Progressives/Marxists rely heavily on identity politics: political positions that focus on the concerns of social groups such as gender, race, ethnicity, or sexual orientation (e.g., Black Lives Matter, la Raza, LGBT, #Me-Too, etc.) For centuries, like-minded people have joined: The Knights Templar in medieval times, philosophical societies during the Enlightenment Era, etc. Identity politics, however, goes a step further. It involves utter disdain for anyone that does not agree with its agenda. Matthew Continetti, the editor of the Washington Free Beacon, pegs 1973 as the birth year of identity politics, the year Solzhenitsyn's book "The Gulag Archipelago" demolished any pretense of communism's moral authority.

Identity politics may have gained a foothold in America forty years earlier than Continetti's benchmark. In the early to mid-1930s, the Jews escaping Nazism brought Marxism from the school of Frankfurt Germany to America. Marxism gained traction in Germany when they used identity politics to divide the guilds. In America, they tried to overthrow our government and replace capitalism with Marxism by using identity politics to divide and defeat the strong middle-class coalition - but failed.

Today's Progressives/Marxists use identity politics to gain moral authority over certain groups to overthrow our government. They use it to sensationalize fictitious struggles between the colonizer and the colonized, victimizer and the victim, oppressor and the oppressed. Then, as now, the Marxists infiltrated our universities. In the 1930s at Colombia University, Frankfurt German Jews injected their "Marxist Studies" and "Critical Theory" classes in the Liberal Arts department. Critical Theory uses the social sciences to criticize and destroy the status quo, social rules, norms, etc. The idea is to make society meaningless and unworkable, paving the way for the cultural revolution. Marxists use "Critical Theory" with multiculturalism and diversity to identify groups and then divide them against each other. Now, American universities in support of the movement have new studies: African American, Chicano, Gender, Women, etc. Irving Kristol wrote: "What these radicals blandly call multiculturalism is as much a 'war against the West' as Nazism and Stalinism ever were".

Paraphrasing Heather Mac Donald, Manhattan Institute Fellow and bestselling author of "The War on Cops" and "The Diversity Delusion", students of the 1980s only needed to know what race an author is to know if the content should be dismissed without reading it and then to go on to wallow in their own delusional depression. Students are taught to hate western civilization, themselves, and others. From the moment they step on campus they are taught identity politics, that they are either a victim or an oppressor. Oppressors are most famously heterosexual white males, and the only way to get out of their oppressor category is to become an ally of the oppressed. There is a massive bureaucracy dedicated to instilling in students a delusional sense of their own oppression that prevents them from seeking an open mind and knowledge. They then carry this delusion of victimology into the world at large, blaming American institutions for endemic racism when it is no longer true. One reason college tuition is so expensive is the presence of all the diversity programs. For example, UCLA's Vice Chancellor for Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion makes over \$400,000 per year.

Multiculturalism

Sociologists and psychologists have found that diversity and multiculturalism, not assimilation, create isolation, crime, depression, low wages, welfare, crumbling communities as well as other detrimental factors. Academia, however, protects their funding by suppressing their own studies, such as the longitudinal study done by Harvard's political scientist Robert Putnam which demonstrates the pitfalls of multiculturalism.

Putnam's massive study, based on detailed interviews of nearly 30,000 people across America, found that the greater the diversity in a community, the fewer people vote, the less people volunteer, the less people give to charity and the less people work on community projects. In the most diverse communities, neighbors trust one another only about half as much as they do in the most homogenous settings. This study, the largest ever on civic engagement in America, found that virtually all measures of civic health are lower in more diverse settings. The study is already being cited as proof of the harm large-scale immigration causes to the nation's social fabric.

Putnam is the nation's premier guru of civic engagement and both Bill Clinton and George W. Bush made him one of the country's most widely known social scientists. Putnam notes: "It would be unfortunate if politically correct progressivism were to deny the reality of the challenge to social solidarity posed by diversity." Putnam claims the U.S. has experienced a pronounced decline in "social capital," a term he helped popularize. Social capital refers to the social networks - friendships, religious congregations, or neighborhood associations - that he says are key indicators of civic well-being. When social capital is high, says Putnam, communities are better places to live, neighborhoods are safer, people are healthier and more citizens vote.

Concept Creep

Chaos is the friend of Marxism. In the 1930s, 55% of the people joining the Brownshirts were former communists or socialists known as beef steak Nazi's i.e. brown on the outside, red on the inside. Like today's Progressives/Marxists, the 1930s soviet politician, Leon Trotsky, and other revolutionary Russian Marxists used the media as well as entertainers to vilify all opposition to the communist party. Then, as now, they used a strategy known as "concept creep" that constantly broadens their ideological concept. As Nick Haslam, a professor of psychology at the University of Melbourne, Australia, stated: "Concept creep broadens moral concern in a way that aligns with a liberal social agenda by defining new kinds of experience as harming and new classes of people as harmed." Below are four current examples of concept creep in action:

EXAMPLE 1: To diminish Trump, the progressives, entertainers, and media outlets try to pair or associate him, his supporters, Nationalism and American patriotism with Nazi's and racism. First, they call Trump a Nazi, a Nationalist and a racist. Second, violently opposing anyone attending Trump rallies, they associate Trump supporters with Nazis, Nationalists, and racists. Third, anyone wearing a Make America Great Again (MAGA) hat is labeled a Trump supporting, MAGA hat wearing Nazi, Nationalist racist. Fourth, anyone associated with Trump is a Trump supporting, MAGA hat wearing, Nazi, Nationalist racist.

EXAMPLE 2: Laguna Beach, CA, has been infiltrated by illegals, many of whom are objecting to the new police car that displays the American flag. They claim they are now an international town and the police car display represents Trump, Trump supporters, MAGA hats, Nazis,

Nationalists, racists, etc., and they want it removed. Peter Blake, Laguna Beach's Councilman, says the group opposing the police car display is now claiming the American flag itself represents Trump, Trump supporters, MAGA hats, Nazis, Nationalists, racists, etc., and they don't want the American flag displayed. Blake claims some members objecting to the new police car display have now gone as far as claiming America represents Trump, Trump supporters, MAGA hats, Nazis, Nationalists, and racists. Blake wants to know, at what point does it stop: The Pledge of Allegiance at the city council meetings, their 4th of July celebrations, their Patriot's Day parade, does the flag have to go? etc.

EXAMPLE 3: One day you might wear a MAGA hat only to have your favorite entertainers, most media outlets and progressive organizations target, vilify and destroy you, labeling you a racist fascist pig in accordance with Saul Alinsky's doctrine. The next day you might speak out against socialism, and you again find yourself labeled a racist fascist pig. The next day you might deny human-caused climate change exists, and once again you are targeted, vilified, and labeled a racist fascist pig. Perhaps you also support capitalism, individual liberty, lower taxes, personal property rights, small government, Trump, God, etc. (the antithesis of the progressive ideology.) You will again be labeled a racist, oppressive, fascist pig, and be targeted and destroyed.

Example 4: Liken to the French revolution, to usher in their Progressive/Marxism, the Progressive/Marxist are intent on wiping the United States culture from existence. First, they decide that the confederate statues and symbols are racist and must go. The next day they decide the founding fathers are racist and their statues and any representation of their existence must be removed. Next, all civil war then presidential monuments, paintings, and icons most be expunged. Then Jesus, stain glass windows, and any symbolism representing religion, America, or western civilization must be purged. Then they come for your property, your home, then you.

Eventually everything except the Progressive/Marxist agenda becomes racist, white privileged, oppressive, etc., and only Marxist ideologies will be tolerated. The progressive's ideological concept continues to expand from one idea to another until you cannot speak or think anything other than what they want you to think, at which point, ironically, you are labeled a fascist.

Hate Speech

A fifth tactic progressives use to stigmatize and force compliance, is hate speech, which is used by social media CEO's, educators, and the media, among others. Tim Cook, CEO of Apple, has announced that hate speech will no longer be allowed on Apple's platform, that Apple will now be the arbiter of hate speech. At a September 9, 2018 congressional hearing, Twitter CEO Jack Dorsey admitted to blacking out and censoring over 600,000 mostly conservative's Twitter accounts and search engine results. Free speech has been replaced with Silicon Valley conformity. Hi-tech social media CEO's like Cook, Dorsey, and Zuckerberg are now controlling your thoughts and constitutional rights through Orwellian "newspeak" by controlling the

content allowed on your social media (e.g. speech, gun rights, politics, PC, etc.). Alex Jones, Milo Yiannopoulos, and Laura Loomer have been permanently banned by Twitter for their conservative ideologies. Candace Owens, a black woman, was suspended from Facebook for saying white supremacy was not as big a threat as other ideologies. Diamond and Silk, two black conservative women, were thrown off Facebook until they testified at a Congressional hearing. Michelle Malkin was banned from Facebook for opposing censorship of those conservatives.

Google boasted about their company's free exchange of ideas until James Damore argued in a Google in-house memo the inferiority of women in the tech world. Google's CEO promptly flew in, fired then trashed Damore so severely that it will be impossible for him to ever find a job in his field again. Another Google employee was severely reprimanded for sharing a National Review article. Tech entrepreneur Palmer Luckey was fired from Facebook for supporting Trump. Alex Jones has been suspended from all social media, even PayPal, because the heads of those platforms decided his conspiracy theories were hate speech. Dan Scavino, Trump's social media director, was banned from Facebook after his posts were flagged by an algorithm. Several republicans running for office during the 2018 midterms were booted from Google, Facebook and Twitter who censored their campaign information.

Project Veritas videotaped the head of Google's 'responsible innovation' program, Jen Gennai, saying: "We all got screwed in 2016. Elizabeth Warren is saying that we should breakup Google. And like, I love her, but she is very misguided. Like that will not make it better it will make it worse, because now all these smaller companies who don't have the same resources that we do will be charged with preventing the next Trump situation, it's like a small company cannot do that." A leaked email written by Google staffer Liam Hopkins called conservatives Prager U, Jorden Peterson, and Ben Shapiro Nazis. Hopkins went on to say that he did not think identifying far-right content was beyond our capabilities. Dr Robert Epstein of Cambridge, a democrat and well-respected publisher in the Journal of National Academy of Science, published an article regarding Google's "search engine manipulation effect" (SEME). After exhausted research and statistical analyses, he discovered that Google influenced between 3.5-10.5 million votes in favor of Hillary Clinton during the 2016 election due to Google's search engine manipulation. He is now concerned that this same manipulation will influence over 60 million votes favoring democrats in the 2020 election.

Many software companies and their administrations aspire to become global elites, like their predecessors, and their employees have unwittingly become closed minded products of their software company's environments. Mind the Gap, a secret Silicon Valley organization, is raising \$140 million to defeat Trump in 2020. Exactly no Twitter staff and only 1 Facebook staff member has donated to Trump's campaign. As globalists, many tech companies' loyalties now lie outside of America. For example, Apple refused to assist the FBI in opening the iPhone of a terrorist who had links to al Qaeda who are threatening to harm Americans. Aiding in China's crackdown on Hong Kong protesters, Google banned an app that helped protesters avoid

conflict with China's military. Astonishingly, Google will not help the U.S. military develop its drone artificial intelligence (AI) yet Google is inside Communist China assisting their military in developing their AI, touch screens, cloud, and other technologies.

Angela Merkel got caught talking to Zuckerberg on an open microphone about suppressing speech she did not like. In the following months Zuckerberg made several speeches promising to shut down hate speech, especially in Germany. When asked about Facebook's partisan censoring policies, Sen. Mazie Hirono (D-HI) replied straight faced: "If you don't want to be censored, don't say anything we disagree with." This despotic supremacy tells you all you need to know about progressivism. Joseph Stalin said: "Ideas are more powerful than guns. We wouldn't give our enemies guns, why should we let them have ideas."

Free speech is not only being controlled by the tech giants but also through our networks, the progressive movement, and our schools. Here are just a few recent examples. Yashar Ali, a progressive independent reporter, was confirming the date for the first democratic primary debate with the DNC. After the date was confirmed he was told to delay his report. Yashar refused, then was later contacted by the editor of politics for NBC News and MSNBC, Dafna Linzer, requesting that he delay his story. Linzer was not working on behalf of her network but rather working on behalf of the DNC. Evidently, NBC and MSNBC News are working for the DNC. In another example, when Michael Avenatti accused Brett Kavanaugh of gang rape, NBC News sat on information that would have exonerated him.

Obama publicly claimed that he never threatened to shut down the media, but behind the scenes he did plenty to try and silence it. He banned Fox News' Chris Wallace from an interview on healthcare reform. He Labeled Fox News' James Rosen a criminal coconspirator under the espionage act, seized his parents phone records, seized the phone records of at least (5) phone lines connected to Fox News and subpoenaed his emails. In May of 2013, the Associated Press (AP) revealed that the Obama justice department had been collecting months' worth of personal and work-related phone calls related to their publication.

Virginia teacher Peter Vlaming was fired for addressing students by name instead of using pronouns. Ted Mancini was expelled from Cheshire Academe for being a conservative. During a formal debate two women yelled at him because he disagreed that Shakespeare was pro transgender and was disciplined. A faculty member that headed the disciplinary committee said "when you speak your mind and you're offending people in the room, that can be seen as part of harassment... if you make comments in class and those people feel uncomfortable, the initial burden is on you." Mancini then responded that he was offended because the school forced him to attend white privilege and toxic masculinity seminars, reeducation classes. The disciplinarian then told him, since he was in the majority, the bar to offend him was set higher. Evidently majorities must suffer "Repressive Tolerance" and are not afforded the same rights and privileges as minorities.

People have stopped thinking. If a minority claims to be a victim, to avoid being called a racist, people just believe and go along with the victimology. The media report hoaxes because people identify with the victims. The media fabricates Trump reports because they get more 'clicks' and more money. Similarly, politicians create panic and fear because it brings in donations and drives people to the polls.

A sixth playbook tactic used by progressives is projection. To better analyze this tactic and to keep our historical perspective, we first must look at a few 20th century figures that contributed to these basic progressive concepts.

III. 20th Century Progressive Founders

Cloward and Piven

In 1966, Cloward and Piven, Columbia University sociologists and political activists, devised a plan to overload the welfare system to collapse local governments and force a guaranteed annual income. They felt full enrollment of eligible welfare recipients would disrupt welfare agencies and cause fiscal disruption to local and state governments. They also felt that this would deepen existing resentment among the remaining white middle class, the working-class ethnic groups, and the growing minority poor.

They organized protesters who rioted and enrolled in welfare programs at an alarming rate. They also recruited the Black Panthers, a violent radical racial group, to help implement their program. The Black Panthers intimidated welfare agencies to accept more welfare recipients which expanded their rolls. The biggest impact was in New York City, where roughly 1/3 of the adult population enrolled in welfare programs causing the city to declare bankruptcy in 1975. The city's political infrastructure crumbled, which almost brought down the entire state.

The New York crash illustrated that Cloward and Piven's basic theories were correct and sparked a reform movement demanding a total overhaul of the welfare system. The result was the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 1996 which tightened restrictions for welfare eligibility and increased work requirements. The goal was a federal safety net for the unemployed, but not something that could be used to hold the poor in generational cycles of poverty. When President Bill Clinton signed the bill into law, Cloward and Piven were standing in attendance as his personal guests.

SEIU's former president, Wade Rathke, was a disciple of Cloward and Piven. Rathke and the SEIU were instrumental in turning the red state of Nevada into a blue state. Following in Cloward's and Piven's footsteps, Rathke founded the ACORN organization which was later indicted for voter fraud in Nevada. Prior to the indictment, ACORN, a strongarm organization, joined forces with the ruling elite Rep. Barny Frank, Sen. Chris Dodd, Fannie May, the DNC, and the DNC finance committee that oversaw U.S. banks.

Andrew Cuomo, now (D) Governor of New York with an eye on the presidency, was then HUD director. Pressure from newly passed DNC banking laws, ACORN protests, Cuomo and Fannie

May were instrumental in forcing local banks to give risky, no-doc loans to indigents and illegal immigrants. Later, James Johnson and Franklin Raines (two prominent democrat politicians, former Wall Street executives and Fannie May CEO's) offered cheap bond rates to incentivize Wall Street to buy into the progressive's no-doc mortgage scam. Turning lemons into lemonade, they bundled and sold subprime mortgages. The party continued until the loan holders, indigents and illegal immigrants could no longer roll the loans over and defaulted. Following the Cloward and Piven strategy, the progressive ruling elite were largely responsible for the housing and financial meltdown that recently plunged our country into the great recession of 2008. Wall Street is in bed with the progressives, not with the republicans, as evidenced by the fact that more than 85% of Wall Street's campaign contributions are made to the democratic party.

The progressive media coalition, of course, deflected attention from the socialist policies that caused the crash and blamed Wall Street, capitalism, and conservatives. In true progressive projection, Rep. Barney Frank and Sen. Chris Dodd, key players of the financial meltdown, wrote the Frank-Dodd bill, punishing Americans, local banks and their consumers who had nothing to do with the meltdown. Unpunished and unmolested by the media, Frank and Dodd waited for the appropriate moment to fade from the scene, never to be heard from again. Rathke left SEIU to become president of the International Communist Party and later helped organize anti-Trump riots before, during and after President Trump's inauguration.

Attempting a fait accompli, the progressives are now using the Cloward and Piven strategies by importing both legal and illegal welfare recipients with the goal of overwhelming our system. Illegal immigrants invading our country are overwhelming our schools, welfare systems, hospitals, law enforcement and other services in a planned coup to bring down our country. The current migrant caravans are bringing thousands of poor, unskilled migrants into the U.S who, upon their arrival, need health care, education, housing, food, clothing and other basic needs, all which cost taxpayer money. Almost all arrive with nothing except the clothes on their backs. Unskilled, the ones that do not immediately go on welfare take the jobs of poor and low skilled U.S. workers forcing them on welfare.

According to the U.S. census bureau, 54% of legal and 70% of illegal Hispanics are on welfare. Hispanics are 2X more likely to use Medicaid or food stamps than native Americans. In California, 70% of all non-citizens are on some form of welfare. According to the bureau of justice statistics, 64% of federal arrests and 43% of federal prosecutions were of non-citizens. Illegals committed 25K of the 67K murders between 2005-2008.

The Cloward-Piven four step strategy is: 1) overwhelm the system via unsustainable growth in the welfare state, 2) have chaos ensue, 3) take control in the chaos and 4) implement Socialism and Communism through government force. This is a conscious effort by the progressive ruling elite to help accelerate the collapse of our system so they can usher in their elite brand of socialism. The Cloward-Piven strategy creates power for the global corporate elites and misery for the rest of Americans. The global corporate elites and their families will continue to be safe,

prosperous, and secure in their communities and schools, far from the hordes of third world immigrants.

Saul Alinsky

Another activist revered by the progressives is Saul Alinsky. Born in Chicago, IL, in 1909, Saul Alinsky was an archeology major who attended the university of Chicago. An avowed communist, he worked for the Congressional Industrial Organization (CIO), now the AFL-CIO union. As a community organizer he was dedicated to developing hardnose tactics that implemented communism from within the American system. His 1971 book, "Rules for Radicals," takes the school of Frankfurt's stale archaic principals, refreshes, organizes and modernizes them into easy to use guidelines for radical Marxists. Barack Obama taught "Rules for Radicals" courses as an instructor at the University of Chicago. The progressive media coalition calls Trump a Russian agent. Does this mean Obama was a Marxist agent?

Alinsky, like the progressives, believes the best method to incite a revolution is to create malcontent, making happy people unhappy (e.g., the world is ending, America is racist, income inequality, etc.) Then he can unite his ideas under the rubric of "Hope and Change"- sound familiar? Alinsky believes the ends justify the means. Do not worry about the methodology, just do what you must do to win. As Stalin said, "you have to break a few eggs to make an omelet." Alinsky said, "Winners write history, so you better be a winner." To Alinsky, politics and life is war and the alternative to a corrupt victory is to "go home defeated with my ethical hymen intact."

Andrew Breitbart, in his book "Righteous Indignation", while discussing the attributes Alinsky looks for in a community organizer, wrote: "His bottom line is plain and unvarnished: Kick ass and then pretend you were doing the moral thing. Lie, cheat, and steal for victory. If you must lie to win, then lie, and win, then lie about your lie. If you must win with brutality, then be brutal and win, and then rewrite history about your brutality. Always cloak your goals in widely agreed-upon American terms that people buy into. Things like the Declaration of Independence or the 'common welfare' provision of the Constitution. Sure, you may be standing for none of those things. But that does not matter - victory is what matters. It's the Chicago way."

To get Marxists elected Alinsky believed you must lie to the middle class and tell them what they want to hear. He adopted this strategy after the school of Frankfurt Marxists failed to overthrow our government in the early 1930s due to the strong middle-class coalition. Alinsky believed that, once elected, Marxists could implement their policies and rewrite history.

Intrinsically, if their agenda is to succeed, progressives must destroy America, her institutions and Constitution. However, when convenient, they wrap themselves in the American flag and the Constitution to cloak their true intentions. For example, Nancy Pelosi tries to shut down the first amendment by citing hate speech, the second amendment by advocating gun control and won't uphold her constitutional duties to protect our borders but claims we need to impeach Trump to preserve our Constitution. The house democrats claim they must impeach Attorney General Barr to preserve the Constitution. The truth is, they want to impeach Barr to coverup the origins of their phony Russian collusion scheme and gin up their base by keeping the

debunked collusion scheme going to get reelected. Using Alinsky tactics Pelosi calls for her party to move closer to the center of the political spectrum until after the election when they will continue to implement their Marxist ideology. Beto O'Rourke and Kirsten Gillibrand claim they are not for open borders and are pro-America, yet they want to eliminate ICE and cut funding for border security. This will overwhelm our schools, welfare systems, hospitals, law enforcement, destroy American taxpayers, our culture and country. Anything for power.

Alinsky believes all history is changing and changeable, that people should ignore the wisdom of the past and that the present is the first moment in history; that community organizers must be curious and irreverent, mocking and questioning our values and morals using critical theory. He believes, unlike the stale Frankfurt crowd, organizers need a sense of humor. Alinsky understands the left needs to fight on both the political and cultural levels and that the right is fighting only on the political level; that art, humor, song, theater, television, film, dance, etc. are all devices that can be used to influence the American people. Alinsky states that the real action is in the enemy's reaction. As an example, the progressives fabricated the Russian collusion hoax. They hoped that even If it failed Trump would become upset, make a mistake, obstruct justice, and give them more targets to attack.

To regain control and power, the progressives want to remove Trump from office. To affect this change, they use Saul Alinsky's "Rules for Radicals" concepts. First, they use "racist" as a "symbol construction" - a mark, sign or word that represents an idea, object, or relationship and conveys other ideas and beliefs – to strengthen their unity. Then they use the progressive organization and all its resources as the structure with which to operate. Once they are united behind a common symbol ("racist") they find a common enemy ("Trump") to unite against. This heightens awareness to the similarities its members share as well as what differentiates them from that outside of their organization. Finally, they use "Direct Action" - Congress, courts, media, Antifa etc. - to block and disrupt Trump's inauguration, speeches, and policies. The use of conflict allows for the goal of the group to be clearly defined. With an established external antagonist ("Trump") the community's goal is to defeat that enemy. Below are the rules of power tactics Alinsky describes in his book, Rules for Radicals. Study them carefully as they will be illustrated throughout the rest of this content.

The Rules:

- "Power is not only what you have but what the enemy thinks you have."
- 2) "Never go outside the experience of your people."
- 3) "Whenever possible go outside the experience of the enemy."
- 4) "Make the enemy live up to their own book of rules."
- 5) "Ridicule is man's most potent weapon."
- 6) "A good tactic is one that your people enjoy."
- 7) "A tactic that drags on too long becomes a drag."
- 8) "Keep the pressure on."
- 9) "The threat is usually more terrifying than the thing itself."
- 10) "The major premise for tactics is the development of operations that will maintain a constant pressure upon the opposition."
- 11) "If you push a negative hard and deep enough it will break through into its counterside."

- 12) "The price of a successful attack is a constructive alternative."
- 13) "Pick the target, freeze it, personalize it, and polarize it."

Herbert Marcuse & Repressive Tolerance

Trump, in his first state of the union speech, used the word 'America' 32 times and suggested Americans have dreams, too. Using Saul Alinsky tactics, the progressives, faking indignation, met this patriotism with ridicule, intolerance, and disdain. The mere mention of this country's occupants, especially as legitimate stakeholders, is to be treated as a hate crime. To become a One-World order, intolerance, demonization, and repression of U.S. citizens is necessary to spur the takeover of our country. According to the Progressives/Marxists and their invaders, U.S. citizens are just trespassers, illegal immigrants themselves, and white citizens are intolerant racist scum, lower than illegal immigrants, with no legitimate rights or claim to this country.

This logic gives the invaders moral superiority and superior rights over our citizens. By delegitimizing our citizens and institutions, progressives strip our citizens' rights, our voice, and any opposition to their takeover of our country. This strategy is known as 'repressive tolerance', a term coined by Herbert Marcuse in 1965. Repressive tolerance argues that tolerance is only good if non-dominating ideas can flourish, and that non-dominating ideas can only flourish if dominating ideas are shut down. In short, repressive tolerance states that only minorities have a right to an opinion because majority opinions are oppressive. This is a very convenient philosophy designed to shut down our first amendment, the majority voice and debate. The same first amendment that gave the school of Frankfurt the right to express their ideas is now being used to shut down American's freedom of expression. There is another name for repressive tolerance: political correctness, and it is practiced by our schools, media, and Hollywood. As Mao Tse-Tung argued in his essay, "Where Do Correct Ideas Come From", politically correct ideas come from Progressivism/Marxism and all incorrect ideas must be put out of their misery.

Before moving to America, Marcuse was part of the 1930s Marxist Frankfurt school's think tank in Germany, where he helped to develop "critical theory". Marcuse believed in "deconstruction", that every thought or writing from the past must be destroyed to propagate Marxism. Repressive tolerance is designed to advance the progressive agenda by silencing us, having us question our identity, doubt our legitimacy, and create chaos by dividing us. Prior to World War II, the growing stigma towards communism in the U.S. hastened the U.S. Communist Party to change their name to Progressive, and repressive tolerance was later modernized and incorporated by Saul Alinsky.

We are to shut up and be silent as the ruling class minority and their useful idiots have decided it is in their best interest to give away our country. Against the interest and consent of the majority we are to be silent as they conduct their invasion, their occupation, or be beatdown with labels such as racist, white privileged, oppressor, and other aspersions. If you continue to resist you will be beat by Antifa, Black Lives Matter or other communist revolutionary thugs.

They call themselves progressives, but they are really regressors and oppressors. When you point to the continued failure of communism (e.g., China, Cuba, India, Soviet Union, Switzerland, Venezuela, etc.) progressives repeat the same old mantra of other failed communist states: "real communism has never been tried." Progressive actions are neither tolerant nor inclusive. Once they have stolen and occupied our homeland there will not be a place for you or your family in their new world order.

George Soros

George Soros and the global corporatists are seeking ways to end populist agendas and use refugee policies to destabilize both America and Europe. Since 1954, world leaders and the top corporate elite - the Bilderberg group – meet annually to discuss topics such as the economy. Last year's topics were "Why Populism is Growing" and "Fake News", and this year's topic is "Globalization". No reporters are allowed at these meetings, they keep no minutes and are sworn to secrecy. These global corporate elites will do anything necessary to stop the populist agenda including spending billions to support Antifa, Black Lives Matter and other violent destabilizing groups.

Soros is a long-standing member of the Fabian organization which is dedicated to a One-World global order. He has a felony conviction for inside trading and is permanently banned from doing business in the EU, UK, China, Malaysia, and other countries because his hedge fund used currency manipulation to bankrupt and/or destabilize their countries. In his late teens, during World War II, Soros was a curator for the Nazi's. He betrayed his own Jewish community by taking and selling their private possessions for the German Nazis.

These crimes evidently were not enough to stop the democrats from selling out, giving this snake a home in America, and allowing him to continue leading their party. Soon after the democrats lost the 2016 U.S. Presidential election, Soros demanded a meeting. While Schumer, Pelosi and the democrat party knelt at his feet, he ordered them to organize a resistance against American voters. He then outlined how they were going to exploit his thug organizations and have Congress obstruct the will of the American people to regain the progressive ruling class power.

Soros sponsors hundreds of politicians and organizations globally, all of which are meant to bring down and destabilize governments to further his Fabian One-World global order agenda. It is well known he is financing the European immigrant invasion, and Blaze television reports he has given well over \$1MM to the group "People Without Borders" who are organizing the caravans that are invading the U.S. Emma Lozano, a self-professed Marxist, is the executive director of "People Without Borders" and founder of the "Center Without Borders" based in Chicago. Emma, along with her husband, Walter Coleman, are co-pastors at the Lincoln United Memorial Church in Chicago.

Marxist Elvira Arellano was deported in 1977 for fraud but illegally reentered the U.S. the same year. She was rearrested again in 2002 but escaped deportation by seeking sanctuary in

Lozano's church. Elvira founded an organization called "Latino Families United" which advocates for amnesty and sanctuary. Along with Lozano and Coleman, Elvira became the face of the sanctuary city movement and is the brainchild behind the "Migrant Caravan" movement. It just so happens that "Latino Families United" and "People Without Borders" have the same address as Lozano's Lincoln United Memorial Church at 2176 W. Division Street Chicago IL. Soros is also funding the Catholic Legal Immigration Network, Inc. which is affiliated with these groups. Most disturbing, Judicial Watch reports that U.S. taxpayers are unwittingly aiding in their own demise by funding groups that are assisting Soros's caravan movements (e.g. Mobile Hospitals, Children Services, UNICEF, United Nations High Commissions of Refugees, etc.) Progressive judge's and politicians allow these fraudulent activists to enter the U.S. to help them destroy and takeover our country.

In 1993, Soros founded and established the Open Society Institute (OSI), a private foundation aiming to 'shape public policy to promote democratic governance, human rights, and economic, legal, and social reform.' To serve as president of OSI, Soros recruited Aryeh Neier, who previously co-founded the radical Human Rights Watch and the Students for Democratic Society (SDS) organizations and served as the National Director of the American Civil Liberties Union (ACLU) for 8 years.

Today Soros is continuing his attempts to reshape our justice system and has channeled millions into local district attorney campaigns in over 17 states to elect social justice states attorneys. His money has gone to states attorney campaigns in Florida, Illinois, Louisiana, Mississippi, Nevada, New Mexico, Pennsylvania, Texas, etc. His goal is to reform our justice system into a more progressive social justice system with friendlier laws that reduce penalties on general crime, immigration, abolish bail, the death penalty, etc. Chicago's Cook County suffered the latest repercussion of a Soros-elected states attorney, Kim Foxx, when she dismissed all chargers in the Jussie Smollett case. Chicago police are pushing for her removal, not only for the Smollett case, but because she continues to release dangerous criminals back onto the streets, including murderers.

Below are just a few organizations sponsored by Soros and the global elites that advocate for U.S. open borders, the destabilization of our border security, and the destruction of America: ACLU, American Immigration Council, Center for Human Rights and Constitutional law (CHRCL), Detention Watch Network, Equal Voice, Immigration Advocates Network, National Council of la Raza, National Immigration Forum, National Immigration Law Center, Refugee and Immigration Center for Education and Legal Services (RAICES), Unidos US, etc.

Soros gave \$90 million to organize the Women's March, then a few months later gave them another \$250 million to continue the Linda Sarsour uprising and organize their #me-too movement. Soros gave over \$400 million to the DNC during the Obama administration and hundreds of millions to Antifa, Black Bloc, Black Lives Matter, By Any Means Necessary, Center for American Progress, Citizens for Responsibility and Ethics, Democracy 21, Media Matters,

MoveOn.org, Southern Poverty Law Center, and countless other organizations dedicated to the overthrow of America and anyone who stands in their way.

Soros sponsored Indivisible, the organization that shutdown free speech by disrupting republican townhall meetings that lead to the 2018 midterm elections. This group was started by a democrat Congressional staffer and his wife, Lea Greenberg. Greenberg was a Soros justice fellow who worked for a group called "Humanity United" which was funded by Soros' Open Society Foundations. Indivisible's secretary is from the National Immigration Law Center, an open borders organization, also funded by Soros' Open Society Foundations, whose treasurer is from SEIU. One big happy family.

Antifa is funded by George Soros and claims to battle far-right authoritarians. Their purpose, however, is to shut down any point of view that does not align with their communist views. They are part of the 2011 Occupy Wall Street and 1990s Globalization movement. Their roots originate in early 20th century Europe, Germany, and France. They have a communist ideal system and affiliations with the Middle East. They recruit from minority groups, the mentally ill and communities with similar anti-government sentiments. Antifa is remarkably like Hitler's Brownshirts, Mussolini's Black shirts, radical Muslims, and other authoritarian groups.

While Antifa members chant "no Trump, no wall, no USA at all", they attack and undermine our culture, history, constitution, founders, European heritage, and citizens. They planted chapters across the nation during the 2016 election to assault first amendment rights, verbally and physically attack Trump supporters and disrupt conservative rallies. They dress in black and cover their faces during their destructive violent assaults. They have destroyed Berkeley buildings, shutdown free speech (e.g., Breitbart, Ann Coulter, Ben Shapiro, etc.,) assaulted right-wing activists in Portland OR., destroyed store fronts in Washington, D.C., on inauguration day, etc. To invoke alt-left sentiment, they were deliberately brought to Charlottesville to engage in violence against the Neo Nazis and citizens protesting the destruction of civil war monuments. Candace Owens, Director of Communications at Turning Point USA, who happens to be black, considers Antifa to be an upgraded KKK.

Other Soros organizations responsible for the riots at Berkeley and NYU were Refuse Fascism and Global Justice. These groups also violated the Klan law by wearing masks, burning buildings, and caused a half million dollars in damage while stifling constitutional free speech without arrest. According to the Daily Caller and his own Facebook page, the first Latino mayor of Berkeley, CA, 32-year-old Jesse Arreguin, is a member of George Soros's group, By Any Means Necessary (BAMN). Like the progressives, BAMN supports open boarders, illegal immigrant rights, affirmative action for illegals, and illegal integration.

While the above organizations rioted, burned, and destroyed public buildings and private property, violently assaulted Trump supporters and conservative speakers, Arreguin and his police chief, Andrew Greenwood, ordered stand-downs of their Berkeley police officers. This has been verified by several testimonials from police officers and individuals within Berkeley's

police department. Projecting Progressives order Antifa attacks then claim republicans are selling hate and division. Arreguin and California's first Latino state attorney general, Xavier Becerra, have ties with la Raza (The Race), a racist Mexican insurgent organization which is attempting to gain Latino control of America's southwest and political control of the entire country.

Arreguin, Becerra and other Latinos use these radical Mexican organizations for financial and political support to gain access to and/or take over high government offices throughout the southwest and our country. They are now advocating for the secession of California. Radical Mexicans believe in a myth called Aztlan - that America took their land and they will get it back when they become the majority through both legal and illegal immigration. The Edelman institute recently found that 53% of Californians plan on leaving the state, 63% of which are millennials. Many Latinos now representing California have stated publicly that they are happy to see them go.

These racist ethnocentric organizers and their political hacks are using Alinsky tactics to turn our cities and states into lawless, illegal immigrant-controlled sanctuaries while destroying our culture and constitutional liberties from within. While they are taking over our country, they are branding white Americans as racists, white supremacists, white privileged fascist oppressors, or whatever Kool-Aid they think they can get Americans to drink. As these organizations invade, they are calling for the extermination and/or exile of white people from our own country. Media reports of these violent scenarios have become increasingly more frequent. Unfortunately, there are many pathetic Americans drinking their Kool-Aid and buying the guilt they are selling while they are being robbed of their country, heritage, culture, and constitutional liberties.

There are hundreds of anti-American Latino organizations residing within the U.S. (e.g. la Raza, LULAC, MALDEF, MAPA, etc.) that demand dual citizenship (with dual voting rights) and allegiance to Mexico and the Mexican community. Soros and the progressives have aligned themselves with these anti-American organizations and have syphoned hundreds of millions of taxpayers' dollars to these invaders. Congressmen Barney Frank alone gave la Raza \$100 million of taxpayer's money before leaving office. It is laughable that progressives pretend to be concerned about Russian collusion and influence.

Militant Soros and Latino organizations are not the only anarchists Americans have to face; Obama organizations are joining the Soros forces. "United to Protect Democracy" was conceived by former Obama White House administration lawyers. The group is headed by attorney Ian Basin who previously worked for a global activist outfit financed by George Soros. It has been widely reported that top attorneys from the Obama administration, including Eric Holder, are dedicated to shutting down and sabotaging the Trump administration and presidency. The nypost.com/2017/02/11/how-obama-is-scheming-to-sabotage-trumps-presidency/- reported that Obama, just 8 days before leaving office, ordered the NSA to release top secret information that was circulating within the incoming Trump administration to 16

other agencies to wreak havoc within the Trump administration. This information breach caused vital national security leaks. Anything to keep progressive ruling class power.

When you combine George Soros' organizations with the Obama and Latino organizations, you have the emergence of what the media is now calling the shadow government. The only reason to organize these insurgencies is for a coup d'état, possibly replacing our government with a Soros One-World global order, a strange mix of fascist Marxism. Before they turn us into another police state spied on by our own intelligence agencies, e.g., a banana republic like Venezuela and other socialist totalitarian governments, we need to: 1) enforce the RICO act to stop their gang related fascist intimidation, 2) arrest Soros and others who finance, organize and incite riots and who plan insurrection and the violent overthrow of our government, and 3) enforce our deportation laws. Unfortunately, most of our politicians are bought and paid for by Soros and the global corporate lobbyists or they are in the process of becoming one of them.

A few of the global corporate elites exploiting taxpayer-subsidized labor and backing the Obama/Soros global open borders activists are Facebook, Amazon, Apple, Google, Microsoft, big box stores, Wall Street, the national media, U.S Chamber of Commerce, Business Roundtable, religious organization etc. These are the money people who profit from open borders at the expense of American families and taxpayers, i.e., the factions of special interest that the progressives support, the elite corporatists whom the progressives claim to despise. These groups reflect the Social Darwinian groups that united in 1859 America to exploit and oppress the working class.

It is a forgone conclusion that groups supported by Soros, Obama, la Raza, and others are advocating violent protests and open borders to take over our country and hasten in their new global order. Their agenda is not a secret: they are not hiding anything, their objectives are on their websites (e.g. www.obama.org, twitter@AOC, etc.,) in the media, in their propaganda and lectures. Their violent protesters and the millions of foreign nationals that they help pour into our country to join their ranks, to oust and silence Americans, can be witnessed every day on the news, in our streets and at our borders. Many of their groups are well-coordinated internationally and can be seen on the streets in European and other cities advocating the takeover of their countries. For example, immigrants that have invaded Belgium from the Republic of the Congo and other African countries are now participating in the Black Lives Matter movement, rioting, defacing historical monuments in Brussels, and demanding the takeover of their country. Many people poured into South Africa from the neighboring countries to participate in the overthrow of the South African government. These same scenarios are occurring in the UK, France, Germany and throughout Europe.

The progressive global corporate elites, the establishment, will do anything to maintain power, control and gin up their base. Under their charade of egalitarianism, they send their minions to riot, burn and destroy people's businesses and livelihoods. They destroy towns like Ferguson and universities like Berkeley in the name of tolerance and open mindedness. They advocate for homelessness, drug abuse, open borders, policies that wreak havoc, weaken our society's

fabric, subvert our culture, suck taxpayer welfare benefits, maim and kill. They riot to shut down free speech, free markets, free and open civil society, the government, and then project their fascism and hate on conservatives and defenders of liberty by calling them fascist.

Progressives have lowered the civil rights bar. Frederick Douglass lead the abolitionist movement, Ida B. Wells fought lynch laws while her newspaper was destroyed, Harriet Tubman rescued over 70 slaves, and entrepreneur Booker T. Washington pulled thousands of blacks from poverty. These were all conservatives who uplifted the black community after escaping slavery. Rosa Parks suffered silently after sparking the civil rights movement, Mohamad Ali was stripped of his title fighting for equality, Jackie Robinson suffered while breaking the colored baseball barrier and Martin Luther King just broke barriers. 1960's protesters could be justified, i.e., our youth were slaughtered in what was felt to be an unjust war. Kaepernick has everything, suffered nothing, yet self-indulges in his made-up causes. Today's radicals are rebels without a cause who find it necessary to constantly make things up. They project and reiterate lies that have been debunked many times to justify their destructive violence, chaos and rebellion; lies such as 'blacks are disproportionately singled out and killed by police', 'hands up don't shoot', etc., regurgitating Alinsky and the "repeat the lie" strategy.

The Progressive's Dirty Bomb: Coronavirus

The COVID-19 global pandemic arose during the writing of this paper, which gives us a perfect example of the strategies of these progressive founders in action. About five years ago, Bill Gates, a fanatical global progressive elite with a huge corporate stake in China, suggested that a viral pandemic could be worse than either a conventional or nuclear war. Gates then went on to give hundreds of millions of dollars to both the Centers for Disease Control & Prevention (CDC) and the National Institutes of Health (NIH). Miraculously, after several failed attempts by the progressive ruling class elite to impeach our president and/or destroy our economy to get their power back, we are now experiencing such a pandemic, which emanated from China. Ironically, China has blamed this coronavirus outbreak on the Gates Foundation.

In a recent German interview, Gates suggested that we need to wait for a vaccine before reopening our economy. On a Ted Talks podcast, he said the economic lockdown was an environmental reprieve. Incredibly, the CDC and the NIH, both of which have received hundreds of millions of dollars from the Gates Foundation, are now instrumental in controlling the U.S. economic lockdown. Both the CDC and Anthony Fauci, director of the NIAID, an institute of the NIH, continue to display grossly exaggerated, inaccurate, negative models of the coronavirus which are spreading panic and fear among the public, and they continually warn against reopening our economy. Gates, the CDC and Fauci understand that a vaccine could take years to develop and that our economy only has months before it falls into an irreversible depression.

Trump recently discontinued funding to The World Health Organization (W.H.O.). Tedros Adhanom, before becoming W.H.O.'s president, covered up several of Ethiopia's cholera outbreaks that spread to neighboring countries, killing thousands. Now, as W.H.O.'s president,

Adhanom covered up China's coronavirus outbreak for months, claiming there was no human to human transmission, which allowed the coronavirus to turn into a worldwide pandemic that has killed hundreds of thousands, including thousands in the U.S. Evidently Adhanom's misdeeds did not bother Gates. After bashing Trump for cutting off the W.H.O.'s funding, the Gates Foundation donated \$250 million to W.H.O. Now Nancy Pelosi and the progressives are forming a committee to stop Trump from investigating China and W.H.O.'s involvement in the spread of the coronavirus. Coverup anyone?

In France, Raoult Didier, a renowned physician and microbiologist, treated 1,061 COVID-19 patients with hydroxychloroquine (HCQ) and azithromycin (AZ). So far 98.7% of patients have been completely cured, 91.7% within 10 days, and over half were cured in 4 to 5 days. 8 patients between 74–95 years old who were severely ill died from respiratory failure, not from cardiac toxicity. An earlier study, reported on March 27 by the same Marseille team, that involved 80 patients, found 93% had been completely cured by day 8 with only 1 death occurring in a severely ill 84-year-old. The study concluded that the administration of HCQ+AZ before COVID-19 complications occur is safe and associated with extremely low fatality rate in patients.

In a letter to Gov. Doug Ducey of Arizona, the Association of American Physicians and Surgeons (AAPS) reported that treating 2,333 COVID-19 patients with hydroxychloroquine (HCQ) and chloroquine (CQ) with or without zinc or antibiotic azithromycin resulted in 91.6% clinical improvement. Data was collected from China, France, South Korea, Algeria, and the U.S. There were 63 deaths reported, 52 of which were supposedly severely ill patients from the Veterans Administration. The VA secretary, Robert Wilkie, however, claims the VA never participated in the study. AAPS states that other (HCQ) and (CQ) studies show a decrease in the number of days that a patient is contagious, a reduced need for ventilators, and a shortened time to clinical recovery. AAPS also stated that peer-reviewed studies published from January through April 20, 2020 provide clear and convincing evidence that HCQ may be beneficial in treating COVID-19, especially when used early. Unfortunately, although it is perfectly legal to prescribe drugs for new indications not on the label, the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) has recommended that CQ and HCQ be used for COVID-19 treatment of only hospitalized patients in the setting of a clinical study if available. Clearly this recommendation is intended to doom HCQ to failure.

Progressive bureaucrats, states, counties, and cities are making it difficult for physicians to prescribe or for pharmacists to dispense these medications. As the letter to Gov. Ducey notes, many nations, including Turkey and India, are protecting medical workers and contacts of infected persons by treating them with (HCQ) prophylactically. According to worldometers.info, deaths per million persons from COVID-19 as of Apr 27 are 167 in the U.S., 33 in Turkey, and 0.6 in India." After Morocco and Algeria began using HCQ, a sharp reduction in their COVID-19 fatality rate occurred. AAPS states vaccines and results of randomized double-blind controlled trials of new drugs are at best months away. But patients are dying now, while affordable, long-used drugs would be available except for government restrictions.

Dr. Ivette Lozano, MD, founder of Lozano Medical Clinic in Dallas, Texas, in a progressive county stronghold, says 100% of her patients have made 100% recovery with HCQ, even the ones that had pneumonia and would have gone to the hospital. She says she is shocked at how quickly they recovered, some within 24 hours. She now claims she is getting patients from different counties and states because doctors will not prescribe HCQ out of fear of losing their license. She said she learned of HCQ from the President and wants him to keep spreading the word, that it is saving lives, and that Fauci is trying to silence him from speaking out. She said if the left would quit politicizing HCQ America could be cured and reopen again safely. Lozano says that she is now being blocked by the state's pharmacy board, that the pharmacies are calling her patients and threatening to report her to the state to have her license removed.

Joe Biden, when asked in an interview what he would do to fix the coronavirus situation, stated: "we have to take care of the cure that will make the problem worse no matter what." What was dismissed as a delusional moment might not have been a total slip up. His handlers may have given him a bit of inside information before going on air, and in a moment of incoherency he may have accidentally told the truth. It is obvious that states, counties, cities, and the media that are controlled by the progressive ruling class are suppressing the truth about HCQ to make the problem worse. They are threatening physicians, and the progressive media coalition is spreading falsehoods and misinformation about the drug. First, they invented outright lies, then later used a debunked Lancet Journal report. The progressives claimed HCQ, a drug with an impeccable safety record which has been distributed to hundreds of millions around the world for the past 65 years, is suddenly killing people. The Lancet Journal and The New England Journal of Medicine have since retracted the study after it was discovered that the data used from Surgisphere was developed by a science fiction writer and a part-time model and event hostess.

The progressive media coalition has been caught lying to the public about Russian collusion, Flynn, Ukraine, FISA, the coronavirus, HCQ's lifesaving capabilities, and everything else under the sun yet their lemmings keep coming back for more. Progressive do not care, they will burn down your town, destroy your livelihood, kill you or your loved ones; they want their power and control back. The worse they make it for you, the better for them, then they will project their maliciousness on conservatives, capitalism, and free open societies.

Progressives are taking full advantage of this pandemic to advance their Marxist agenda by utilizing the strategies of the 20th century progressive founders. Calls for government-controlled behavior, economies, income, products, and means of production have been harkened by the global elite's progressive politicians and leaders. Public calls have been made by Hillary Clinton, Joe Biden, Nancy Pelosi, Susan Rice, and other progressives to not let this coronavirus go to waste, to use it to implement their progressive policies. Sen Jim Clyburn (D) SC said the pandemic gives the democrats "a tremendous opportunity to restructure things to fit our vision."

To secure federal revenue, behavioral, and political control, the exaggeration of the number of coronavirus deaths has been publicly endorsed by progressive politicians (e.g., Cuomo, de Blasio, Newsom, Whitmer, etc.). Many of the deaths blamed on the coronavirus were caused by influenza, stroke, heart attack, cancer, respiratory or other illnesses. Even with these exaggerated numbers, the number of coronavirus deaths are still far lower than a bad influenza season of 80K-100K deaths – yet government intervention was never required during a bad influenza season.

Instilling fear, the CDC and Fauci first claimed we would have 1.5MM-2.5MM deaths, then they reduced their claim to 150K-250K. Today national coronavirus deaths are falling and are equivalent to the flu even after including the publicly exaggerated deaths. Conservative states like Georgia, Florida, South Dakota, and others have reopened and their coronavirus numbers are declining. Hong Kong, which has the same population as NYC, never closed and currently has 4 deaths attributed to the coronavirus. NYC, however, continues with its strict lockdown policies and currently has 16,134 deaths. Tyrannical progressive governors, mayors, and county officials however refuse to let their states businesses reopen and threaten retaliation. Many are trying to stall until August when they know the financial meltdown will be irreversible. They believe that this will influence the election and permanently empower them to take full control over our behavior. According to the nonpartisan online survey, zipapp.com, 88% of Americans believe that the progressives are using the coronavirus to remove Trump from office and regain power, not caring who gets hurt.

When we ask for our constitutional rights back, progressives keep moving the goalpost. First, they did not want to overwhelm our medical system and said we needed to flatten the curve. Then we needed more testing, then contact tracing, and now a vaccine before we can have our freedoms back. Americans have flattened the curve to the point that hospitals are going out of business due to the lack of patients. More people are dying from the fear of going to the hospital for treatment than from the coronavirus. Testing has uncovered, because of our mitigation, less people than normal have antibodies, and it has weakened our herd immunity. Progressive politicians refuse to open their schools even though the data now shows children ages 0-18 have less than .0001% chance of dying from coronavirus. School closures have reduced children's immunizations by 66%, making them more vulnerable to disease, and has deprived them of their education and nutrition, particularly for the poor and minorities.

According to NYC health department, 66% of coronavirus cases are contracted by people locked in their houses. Everything the progressive ruling class touches turns to ruin, yet still they demand more power and control. The progressive ruling class morons believe that it is necessary to lock us in our homes and place us under their behavioral control for the sake of the environment and our own well-being. This is just another example of what life will be like under progressive tyranny. Exploiting the coronavirus is an example of the 20th century progressive founder's strategy; a conscious effort by the progressive ruling elite to help

accelerate the collapse of our system; to bring down our country so they can usher in their elite brand of socialism.

IV. Preaching Progressives Project: The Sixth Tactic Inconsequential Truths

Truth is inconsequential to progressives - the end justifies their means. Progressives love to lord over people. They love to preach, shame, threaten, control, and make them repent. They must create a permanent state of malcontent to spur on their movement. Progressives have fabricated, out of whole cloth, hundreds of stories to further their Marxist agenda (e.g., racism, voter suppression, hate crimes, Charlottesville, Russian collusion, climate change, etc.) They use these fabricated stories to accuse anyone that does not adhere to their ideology of the behavior that they themselves are committing. They use this projected behavior to demean and indict free markets, free societies, and conservatives. Anyone challenging their lies is branded a racist and/or a liar. They use a "Rules for Radicals" tactic known as "repeat the lie until the lie is perceived to be the truth". Even after these stories have been debunked, progressives continue to run their narratives.

Like children, progressives project their behavior on conservatives. Truth is irrelevant. When progressive display anti-Semitism, they claim conservatives are anti-Semitic, racist, and anti-Muslim to boot. When Fox News shows nightly, hilarious videos of CNN and MSNBC parroting coordinated scripted talking points acquired from Media Matters, Jeff Zucker accuses Fox of following scripts. Notorious for reporting fake news, CNN's Brian Stelter is hosting a fake news special. When Mueller's report exonerated Trump, proving Fox News right and progressive networks wrong, Trevor Noah at The Daily Show accused Fox News of being propagandists, liars, and conspiracy theorists. The progressives have been using illegal immigrants for the past 40 years to win elections, turn red states blue, promote socialism and a One-World order. When Trump suggested shipping the illegal immigrants, that progressives were promoting, to their sanctuary cities, the progressives claimed that he is the one using illegals. It is becoming increasingly apparent there is a two-tier justice system. The real criminals in the Russian probe (Hillary, the DNC, DOJ, and FBI) are getting off scot-free while anyone associated with Trump is hunted down and arrested. The progressives, however, claim it is a two-tier system because Manafort will only spend the rest of his life in prison instead of getting the chair for the crime of associating with Trump. Below are just a few examples that exposes progressive tactics and the behavior that they project on conservatives. George Bernard Shaw said: "Beware of false knowledge; it is more dangerous than ignorance." Jonathan Swift said: "A lie can travel halfway around the world while the truth is putting on Its shoes." Let us start with the progressive's favorite accusation that they love to project to suppress debate, racism.

Racism

Conservatives should apply Alinsky's tactic "make the enemy live up to its own book of rules" to progressives. Governor of Virginia Ralph Northam (D) won his election by playing the race card, calling his opponent a racist, and then was discovered to have worn a Klan outfit while in med

school. In his mind he is not a racist, everyone else is, and he has announced he is now going to help Virginia heal from his indiscretions. In typical progressive projection, he is going to make everyone else pay and atone for his sins. Northam is pursuing "anti-white privilege", "racial reconciliation" programs, and is looking into having Virginian's pay reparations to exonerate them for his racism. Virginia state's attorney Mark Herring (D) was also caught in a separate incident, posing in racist photographs. Justin Fairfax (D), Virginia's recently elected Lt. governor, is embroiled in rape charges. The second in command at the DNC Keith Ellison, now Minnesota's (D) Attorney General, worships anti-Semitic racist Louis Farrakhan and the Nation of Islam, and has advocated for a black ethnos state. Ellison has been seen at several Antifa events and with top Antifa leader Luis Enrique Marquez. Ellison has also been accused of beating a woman just prior to his election. But all these examples are just #me-too progressive hypocrite Kool-Aid drinking stories for another day. Only conservatives must pay.

Angelo Carusone is the president of Media Matters, an organization dedicated to destroying lives and businesses by accusing others of bigotry. This organization is strongly associated with the Southern Poverty Law Center and daily puts out calls to boycott and/or fire conservatives in media, business, and politics. Recently, it was uncovered by one of their targets, Tucker Carlson, of Fox News, that Angelo himself is a bigot who maintained a racist blog in 2005 that attacked transvestites, Japanese and Jews. In his article, "Tranny Paradise", Angelo ridiculed a Bangladeshi who was robbed by transvestites, calling south Asians "inherently ugly and poor", and then called the writer of the story a "tranny lover". In another post regarding a Japanese coach who sexually abused female players, Angelo advised the victims: "Lighten up, Japs." He then described a Jewish man of being "handsome despite his Jewry." Angelo attributed a Jew's political view to his "several bags of Jewish gold." In another post he heaps praise on a Klansman. Fortunately, Angelo got a taste of his own progressive medicine and was forced to resign.

Using identity politics and/or reverse racism, the progressives have announced that anyone agreeing with conservatism is excusing whiteness. Do people of European heritage need to be excused in their own country? Don Lemon, a black host at CNN, said white men are the biggest terror threat in America. Professor Weinstein of Evergreen College in Washington State was ordered by a left-wing mob to leave campus because he was white. When he refused, progressives rioted. Eventually he was forced to resign. Latino NYC school chancellor Richard Carranza is experiencing concept creep and has expanded the war on "toxic masculinity" to include "toxic whiteness". Carranza has demoted or fired white NYC school executives because of their "toxic whiteness" and has instructed teachers to focus on black students over white ones. The head of the Women's March in Humboldt County, CA., canceled the march because it was too white and symbolized white supremacy, capitalism, and colonialism. In Savannah, Georgia, a press conference for the mayoral race was held, and only black people were permitted to attend.

Second-generation American Muslim Rashida Tlaib, (D) Michigan, is a member of "Palestinian American", an anti-Semitic Facebook group that demonizes Jews. Besides wanting to impeach,

as she said: "the mother fucking President", she has made several anti-Semitic remarks on her Facebook page. Second-generation American Puerto Rican Ocasio-Cortez tweeted: "White supremacy is often subconscious. & Clearly, our nation has not been inoculated. WS is our nation's original sin; the driving logic of slavery, of Native genocide, of Jim Crow, of segregation, of mass incarceration, of 'Send Her Back.' It never went away. It was just dormant." Recent Muslim immigrant Ilhan Omar (D) MN, tweeted that she wanted Allah to help people see the evil doings of Israel. In another tweet she states: "Trumps America is an everyday assault. When you were a kid and you are raised in all black, all Muslim environment, nobody really talks to you about identity. You just are. There is freedom in knowing that you are accepted as yourself."

Comforted by her past all black Muslim origins, Ilhan believes Americans should not be afforded the same self-comforting environmental freedoms as she experienced in Somalia. In a speech she proclaimed that "America won't be the country of white people. That it was founded on Native American genocide and the backs of Black slaves. Soon It will be the country of immigrants." As a new arrival, she demands, like so many others, that Americas demography becomes multicultural. Multicultural with one exception: white people are no longer welcome in their own country. This is what psychologists call an antecedent anecdote, where individuals or small groups attempt to rearrange entire environments (e.g., schools, towns, countries, civilizations, the world) to accommodate their hedonism. After America saves her from a Kenyan refugee camp, she calls us genocidal racists and drags her Muslim hatred for Jews and white people to our continent. Is it too much to ask from people that do not like us, who invite themselves to live with us, to at least show some respect?

Are they historically challenged or are they willfully distorting the facts? One suspect both. Slavery was not just indigenous to the U.S. Historically, slavery was prevalent in every corner of the world from ancient times until the mid-1800s. Slavery continued in Ocasio-Cortez's Puerto Rico for over eight years after it was abolished in the U.S. Slavery occurred in Ilhan's Africa where her ancestors probably captured their own slaves and sold her fellow Africans to slave traders. Slavery was not exclusive to black people but encompassed all races including whites. America started with white indentured servants, and the first Americans who owned black slaves were black people themselves, like Virginia's Anthony Johnson and Archibald Batte. Black slaveholder William Ellison Jr. owned 53 slaves and was the largest of 171 slaveholders in South Carolina. In some places, like Ilhan's Africa, slavery still exists. Evidently, the progressives and their recent immigrant recruits, i.e., the squad, feel only America suffered the atrocities of slavery and preach only America must atone by sacrificing their constitution, culture, and way of life.

Linda Sarsour, when not making anti-Semitic remarks, said Nancy Pelosi "is a typical white feminist upholding the patriarchy, doing the dirty work of powerful white men. God forbid the men are upset-no worries, Nancy to the rescue to stoke their egos." Experiencing their own "concept creep", the progressive anti-Semitism is now spreading to anti-Muslim, white feminists and men. Liken this to the French revolution: eventually they will consume themselves.

The crazy, anti-Semitic, projecting, progressive hypocrites are now calling Trump an anti-Semite. How crazy is that? Trump's daughter, son in-law and grandchildren are Jewish. He moved the U.S. Consulate to Jerusalem, recognized their sovereignty over the Golan Heights and has many Jewish friends including Netanyahu and Giuliani. The Israelites display Trump billboards and, according to Pew, their approval rating of Trump is over 80%. The progressives have a lot of chutzpah accusing Trump of being anti-Semitic after they passed the Boycott, Divestment and Sanctions bill (BDS) to boycott Israel.

In 2001 a Pew poll asked, "Who do you sympathize with more, Israel or Palestine?" The results: republicans 50% Israel, democrats 38% Israel. The same poll today reports that 79% of republicans sympathize more with Israel as opposed to only 27% of democrats. Progressives constantly accuse conservatives of racism, project their behavior on others and throw anything at the wall to see what sticks. Here's Matt Walsh's Blog take: "The democratic party hates Jews, men, white people, southerners, and the list goes on. They accuse everyone else of bigotry because they are bigots. They are like a cheating husband who becomes suspicious of the wife he is cheating on. Nothing but projection."

All these new charges of 'racism' have the reasonable man asking himself several questions: 1) If America and white people are so racist, why are minorities and foreigners breaking through our borders to get in? 2) If they hate white people, why do they come? 3) Why do they hate the white people who founded America's Constitution? 4) Why are first- and second-generation Americans, foreigners who chose to come to America, intent on being insurgent? 5) Why do they feel they have a right to come here, open our borders, take over our country and boast about making white people a minority and/or extinct in their own country? 6) Why do they continue to repeat the same old "critical theory" laundry list that they have brought with them rather than assimilate into the American culture? 7) Are they sent here by other countries as foreign agents to destabilize America? 8) Should we 'inoculate' ourselves from them? 9) Why is it that everyone is free to leave, but no one is rushing to the exit? A second concept progressives project is voter suppression

Voter Suppression

Alinsky's tactic "Ridicule is man's most potent weapon" suppresses votes and voices. When conservatives are asked if they'd run for office or join the Trump administration, many declare that they wouldn't expose themselves or their families to the legal scrutiny or the harassment that the left would impose on them, i.e., the Kavanaugh effect. Still others will not speak at universities or public forums, go to conservative rallies, talk to pollsters or wear MAGA hats for fear of violent reprisals, boycotts and/or excoriation by media outlets and/or social media.

Like a third-world country, anyone associated with or who knows someone associated with Trump is suddenly rousted from their home, dragged to an Obama court, accused of perjury, jailed, and eventually bankrupted (e.g., Manafort, Cohen, Flynn, Stone, etc.) The people framing Trump for collusion (i.e., James Comey, James Clapper, John Brennen, McCabe, Hillary Clinton, Huma Abedin, Cheryl Mills, etc.) were caught red-handed lying to the FBI, without

consequence. In fact, the FBI gave Hillary, Huma, and Cheryl unconditional amnesty, then destroyed evidence by wiping their computers and phones clean so they would not get in trouble doing it themselves. Two-tier justice system anyone?

Even though the black vote increased by 17% in Georgia during the 2018 gubernatorial election, Stacy Abrams and the progressives claimed voter suppression. To instill fear in future Georgia voters after they lost their election, they called for a boycott of their own state. Although many states implemented voter ID laws to protect against voter fraud, minority voting increased by 11% nationally during the 2018 midterms. Ordinarily this would dispel any notion that voter ID suppresses voting, but for progressives only emotions, not facts, matter. Georgia legislators who voted to stop late term abortions are also experiencing "concept creep". Evidently late term abortions are now protected under the progressive agenda. Actors are threatening a boycott, refusing movie production in the state unless legislators reverse their late term abortion decision.

Progressives wrote the book on voter suppression. The Russian collusion, impeach Trump movement, is designed to suppress over 63MM votes. Progressives are desperate to equate MAGA hats with Klan hoods to prevent freedom of thought and expression, and to instill fear in conservative voters. It is a threefer: "political correctness", "repressive tolerance", and "concept creep" all rolled into one. Wearing an Obama T-shirt is cool but wearing a MAGA hat is justification for vigilante justice like the 13-year-old Covington catholic kids experienced at the March for Life event. We even have examples of voter suppression in Major League Baseball: liberal sports writers continue refusing to vote Curt Schilling, one of the greatest baseball pitchers of our times, into the Hall of Fame because he is a conservative. Progressives have not moved far from their days of Robert Byrd, the Ku Klux Klan, or Jim Crow roots - they have just switched hoods and their target's identity.

Covington Kids

After it was exposed that the Black Hebrew Israelites antagonized the Covington kids with repulsive name calling, and after it was exposed that the native American who confronted them was not defusing the situation, told them to go back to Europe, invaded the kids' space, had a history of alcoholism and antagonism, previously escaped prison and wasn't a Vietnam vet, the media did what it always does: covered for the progressives, made heroes out of liars and ran with the 'white privilege' narrative. The media has ignored or distorted the violent Antifa free speech shutdowns at Berkeley, Trump rallies, Ferguson and across the country. Anything other than the progressive agenda carries an Orwellian stigma of racism, fascism, and white privilege. Progressive win-win strategies are endless but familiar: the opposition's freedom of expression will be silenced, or they will suffer a beatdown. Still, progressives insist they are not the fascist monsters, and a fascist is anyone who does not adhere to their ideology.

Hate Crime

Hate crimes is where political correctness and identity politics run amok. Progressives are fighting ghosts, tilting at windmills, fantasizing, romanticizing a diminishing evil or evil where there is none. No matter how accelerated the progress has been in race relationships during the last 150 years, attention-seeking, self-indulgent phonies still shout 'racist!' where it does not exist. There is hardly a city in America with a population over 150,000 where a minority is not the mayor, police chief or running the school board, yet they yell 'white oppression!' Garnering attention, pretend revolutionaries dress up in Marxist garb, clutch bullhorns and parade in the streets yelling "don't choose the side of the oppressor!' Demanding rights without responsibility, their only complaint is that daddy's no longer taking care of them and now they want the government, too.

Promoting hate crimes fulfills Alinsky's tactic "if you push a negative hard and deep enough it will break through into its counter side." The media continues to report that hate crimes are on the rise, sighting "alleged" hate crimes to prove their narrative. The truth is, they lie. Hate crimes are decreasing. For instance, in California, with a diverse population of 40MM people, only 65 hate crimes were committed in 2017 (.0000016%,) whereas 87 were committed in 1996 (.0000021%.) This hardly constitutes an epidemic. The truth, however, will not be tolerated. The progressives howl, and their counterparts in the media publish their yellow journalism.

Wilfred Riley, a black author of the book "Hate Crime Hoax", about how the left is selling a fake race war, found virtually all the high profile hate crimes reported during the past 2-3 years have been hoaxes (e.g. Eastern Michigan, Airforce Academy, burnt black church, Tawana Brawley, Kenyon College, Covington Catholic, Jussie Smollett, etc.). The media also falsely reported stories on Duke lacrosse, Richard Jewell, Ferguson, Kavanaugh, Cambridge police, Rolling Stone UVA, Freddie Gray, Eric Garner, Russia Collusion, Buzzfeed's anti-Trump reports etc... In 2017 a black man was charged for falsifying a racist graffiti incident at Michigan's campus. In 2018 a black woman in New York made up a hateful Trump note story after vandalizing her own car. Riley says the demand for bigots in America greatly exceeds the supply and the grievance industry is well funded. Black Lives Matter has over 460K social media fans. The self-serving, self-appointed progressive organization overseeing hate groups, The Southern Poverty Law Center, has an active investment endowment of \$432 million and takes in \$58-96 million annually. JP Morgan gave \$500,000, and George Soros and Apple each gave \$1 million to this organization.

Race-baiting is a win-win for the progressive ruling class. They are aware that it divides and destroys our nation and are happy to help, not for good, but for power. Either way, they gain power and advance their Marxist agenda by weakening or overthrowing our government. Conservatives cannot grasp the progressive deconstruction reasoning of our constitutional system which is why they cannot defend against it. Progressives do not want power to change our culture; they want to completely change our demography and wipe our culture from existence.

If America is so racist, so oppressive, as the left suggests, why are so many people of color breaking down our doors to come here? If America is so racist and oppressive, why are leftist organizations like the ACLU advocating for the massive infiltration of people of color? Their agenda can only be explained by the fact that they want to dilute America so they can take down our western civilization. A fifth control tactic progressives use is social justice.

Social Justice

Saul Alinsky's rule, "The major premise for tactics is the development of operations that will maintain a constant pressure upon the opposition", keeps the progressive base ginned up. Progressive politicians love setting their dogs loose to protest, loot, riot, and burn to gin up their base prior to elections, and the social justice crowd loves playing identity politics by spreading hysteria through the black victimhood card. In 2014, to raise revenue for his pet projects, New York City Mayor De Blasio used strong arm tactics to enforce a steep cigarette tax. When those tactics led to the death of Eric Garner, he deflected the death as a racist incident to divert attention away from his policies. Affording De Blasio cover, the media once again played the racial scenario, even though the lead enforcement officer was a black female with two black and one white officers.

Also, in 2014, Ferguson's "hands up don't shoot" was a made-up myth. Michael Brown was shot and killed after he robbed and pummeled a store owner, then later rushed, and tried to strip a gun from officer Wilson. After months of investigation, Loretta Lynch and her DOJ finally had to acquit officer Wilson. The acquittal did not matter: the progressives, DOJ and media continued to ruin officer Wilson's life using the myth to employ their vigilante Jim Crow justice. They let their progressive mobs burn down the town to gin up their base before the midterm election and instill fear in anyone who opposed them. To no avail, some businesses owners, hoping to prevent their businesses from being looted and burned, tried to show solidarity by displaying Black Lives Matter signs. After making their customary racial accusations, they packed the Ferguson police department with minorities, then left town.

Capitalizing on the myth of "hands up don't shoot" George Soros sponsored yet another militant, Marxist, social justice mob, "Black Lives Matter", which rioted and burned small business in Ferguson, Boston, Philadelphia, Oakland, New York, Chicago, and other cities throughout America. That was just a prelude of the progressive's plan to gin up their base and regain their power before, during and after the 2016 Presidential election and the 2018 midterm election.

More recently, the progressives are using the George Floyd incident and George Soros's Antifa and Black Lives Matter thugs to shut down our economy and gin up racial tensions and identity politics to again gain support before the 2020 election. Progressive mayors and politicians are incentivizing Antifa and Black Lives Matter riots to terrorize and promote their reelection. In contrast, in 2019, 89 police officers were killed, and shockingly, in 2020, during 48-hours over Memorial Day weekend, 82 people were shot resulting in 19 deaths in the city of Chicago alone,

but there were no protests about either of these cases. Just like the progressive machine controls the teacher's unions, which prevents minorities from receiving a good education, their machine, consisting of city mayors, police chiefs, and county officials, also controls the police unions, which prevents minorities from good law enforcement. In typical fashion, after the progressive policies again cause the problems, the progressive media coalition projects the blame onto republicans and complains that conservatives are not doing enough to fix the problems they have created.

A few rarely mentioned studies shed an interesting light on the notion of 'racial injustice. A 2014-2015 Rutgers University study discovered that black officers were as likely or more likely than white officers to shoot black minorities. In Philadelphia, Obama's Justice Department found that black officers were far more likely to shoot black minorities than were white officers. In a 2018 study by the Journal of Trauma and Acute Surgery, after reviewing 1.04 million calls for service over 2 years in three states, researchers found only 893 incidences of force, or .086% (1 in 1,167) of the calls. The study does not indicate whether the force used in these relatively few instances was justified or not. According to a 2020 Wall Street Journal report, from 2017-2020 the average number of white on black crimes committed each year were 375 (26.7%) while the average number of black on white crimes committed each year were 981 (72.3%.)

According to the 2016 FBI Uniform Crime Report (UCR,) more than 90% of the homicides committed against blacks were committed by other blacks, not by white supremacists. In 2019, the police made 10MM arrests, which included 1004 fatal shootings (.01%.) Of those 1004 fatal shootings, only 41 of the suspects were unarmed (.0004%.) Of the 41 unarmed fatalities, 19 were white (.00019%) and 9 were black (.00009%), barely above absolute 0. We do not know whether the officers involved in the fatal shootings of these 9 black suspects were black or white, but the Rutgers and Philadelphia studies found that black officers are more likely than white officers to shoot black suspects. Crime statistics show that blacks committed more than twice as many crimes as whites, including 53% of all murders, 60% of robberies, and 38% of violent crime. This adds more weight to their smaller (13%) population, which might lead to the expectation that their rate of unarmed fatalities would be higher, not lower, than that of whites. Although every death is tragic, .00009% hardly constitutes an epidemic of cop killings let alone a slaughter of blacks by cops. In fact, the number of unarmed blacks killed by police declined 47% from 2015 to 2019, down from 17 to 9.

The 'slaughter of blacks by cops' is another made up myth used by the progressive media coalition to usher in their fundamental change of America. They are again exploiting another of their made-up myths to defund police departments, replacing them with their militant Marxist organizations like Black Lives Matter and Antifa. These progressive policies are designed to further the destabilization of America and usher in their progressive, lawless society. They have already begun exchanging historical confederate civil war symbols with militant black symbols, e.g., the Robert E. Lee statue comes down in Richmond VA while the newly named Black Lives

Matter Plaza goes up in Washington, D.C. They have also begun replacing free market principles with Marxist redistribution principles. Liken to Jonesville, in Orwellian fashion, the uninformed, Kool-Aid drinking, necessary idiot pod people march blissfully with their hands in the air, to their own demise. Surrendering, they have prostrated themselves to the myths of the progressive ruling class gods to emancipate their white guilt. Amazingly, even though the George Floyd incident was caused by a progressive police force, mayor, and governor, the progressive media coalition managed to project the blame onto Trump, republicans, and conservatives using Alinsky's "symbol construction" technique.

The George Floyd incident in 2020 was a tragedy and justice will be served. We will never know if that sadistic officer would have reacted the same way if George was white. Regardless, .00009% of black suspects being killed by police does not indicate that blacks are being targeted by white police, nor does it constitute an epidemic like the progressive media coalition wants you to believe. They want their lemmings, their necessary idiots, to riot and march. The progressive media coalition loves to indoctrinate and fan the flames of malcontent and anarchy by repeatedly spreading total lies. The progressive media coalition is the enemy of the people. Just as they did with Ferguson and the coronavirus, they are using George Floyd to burn and close down our businesses, towns, and cities to gin up support before an election and to stall America's post coronavirus reopening and recovery in yet another attempt to bring down our system to regain their power.

To further assist the anarchy, George Soros has strategically place AG's throughout American cities, counties, and states who have eliminated the theft and bond legalities. Under the guise of inequality, entertainers and big tech companies are also aiding in the destruction of hardworking middle-class Americans' livelihoods, their personal property, and culture by funding and weaponizing the anarchists. Like a giant Infomercial, progressive politicians have unleashed Soros's anarchists to promote their reelection. On the rare occasion that an anarchist does get detained, they will immediately be freed, without consequences, in an endless loop, to continue looting, rioting, and burning. These policies will mostly eliminate small businesses paving the way for the global big box stores. It would not be surprising if the progressive ruling class politicians assisted the rioters by letting them use the buses that were brought in during the insurrection to help them abscond with their booty.

The sociopathic progressive media coalition believes that they are economically, intellectually, and morally superior; that they are the omnipotent arbiters of right, wrong, good, bad, and evil authorized to selectively implement their propaganda and law enforcement i.e. selectivision. For example, when it suits their cause, they declare coronavirus deadly. They then demand, for our own good and human survival, that the police arrest anyone who will not lock themselves in their homes and will not socially distance. When a more opportunistic cause came along, i.e., George Floyd, it is perfectly legal for thousands of people to lock arms and cram themselves into small areas to protest, march, riot, and loot. Now when the police try to restore law and order they must be defunded. What the progressive media coalition does not mention is that

every one of these cities that they claim are racist have been run by them for decades and most of their mayors, police chiefs, and policeman are black and/or minorities.

Progressives/Marxists and their social justice crowd are all about deconstruction, the spreading of misinformation, misery, and cultural destruction to usher in their Marxist ideology. Like looting, burning, and rioting, progressives love making happy people miserable, and where better to spread misinformation, misery, and cultural destruction than in the American sports arena. One reason that sports united all Americans and was the universal beloved pastime was that sports owners and players promoted themselves as patriots and wrapped themselves in the American flag. Realizing this, progressives used Alinsky's win-win tactics to target, divide, then appropriate the sports culture of mostly white, patriotic, American audiences. Football, for example, under the guise of racism, was targeted by the Progressive Marxists and led by George Soros's marionettes Roger Goodell, Colin Kaepernick, and the militant Black lives Matters organization.

Divisively, like children, they have ripped the joy from a sport that brought happiness and united all Americans by hijacking it and turning it into another one of their miserable anti-American protests. This is just another Alinsky ruse: after creating malcontent, they can promote Marxism under the rubric of "Hope and Change", it is heads they win, tails you lose. At every game you must pay the Marxists homage and eat their excrement by sitting through another one of their insufferable, self-righteous, bogus sermons of mythical lies about white oppression and racism in America or forgo a once loved, iconic, American game.

Either way these miserable, adolescent, progressive, Marxist goons have stolen another piece of American culture and must be stopped. Extortionists are never satisfied: the more you give the worse they get. The majority must no longer suffer Marcuse's repressive tolerance. They must stand, be heard, and defend their republic against this Progressive/Marxist tyranny. We must reverse the despotism they instill, stand fast, unite, and boycott the Marxist propaganda they propagate. The Progressive/Marxist goons must be made aware that we will no longer let them denigrate us or rob us of our dignity, values, and heritage, and that the tyranny and devastation they inflict on people who speak out against them will no longer be tolerated.

Most of these cowards are a disbanded group that know they cannot be individually targeted and hide their treachery behind social media in their mother's basement. This middle eastern terrorist tactic allows them to feel secure while they terrorize and destroy the lives of people that do not adhere to their self-serving ideology. Therefore, we must target and take down their leaders who fund and encourage their treacherous behavior. Politicians, corporations, entertainers, sports figures, and individuals funding these thugs who extort individuals and business for profit and political gain are as equally culpable under the RICO act as the thugs extorting the individuals and business. The NFL and their players who back this tyranny must get a taste of their own medicine. They must be driven from the field, ostracized, and permanently ruined both socially and financially as they have done to so many who have stood against their totalitarianism. They have already wrecked the game.

We must also boycott any industries that support the suppression of conservative free speech or support radical Marxist organizations that defile our country. For example, Bank of America, PepsiCo, Walmart, Apple, and comcast have given millions of dollars to weaponize the militant, Marxist, Black Lives Matters organization. Their support allows these militant organization to continue to riot, loot, burn, destroy, assault, and terrorize hard working American taxpayers and entrepreneurs. Industries and individuals supporting these anti-American, global Progressive/Marxist anarchists are either oppressive, despotic, terrorist themselves or are necessary idiots. Let us use another progressive incident, Charlottesville, to recap the entire classic progressive playbook.

Terry McAuliffe, former Virginia governor and Clinton bagman, went to court to prevent the Charlottesville protest in 2017. Demonstrators opposed his Orwellian policy of eradicating historic symbols of the civil war and U.S Confederate heritage. The demonstrators were composed of 40% white nationalist and 60% locals, historians, and Confederate heritage supporters. When McAuliffe was denied his injunction, he recruited George Soros' militant Antifa group. This organization is well known for their violent destructive tactics of burning, beating, and shutting down any events that run contrary to their progressive ideology. Much like Soros' progressive Black Lives Matter group, Antifa members have beaten people and destroyed property in Berkeley, Portland, Philadelphia, and other places throughout our country.

It did not take a genius to figure out what was going to happen when Antifa arrived in Charlottesville to disrupt what the organizers promised would be a peacefully planned demonstration. McAuliffe's plan went off without a hitch: Despite Antifa's violent history, the media played it beautifully, associating Trump with the white nationalists then blaming the ensuing riots on them.

They start with "deconstruction": every thought or writing from the past must be destroyed to propagate the Marxist agenda, in this case eradicating the historic symbols of the civil war and Confederate heritage. Next, they use "identity politics", "multiculturalism" and "diversity" to display fictitious struggles between the victimizer and the victim, the oppressor and the oppressed, to gain moral authority over the demonstrators. They associated all anti-Marxist demonstrator's with white nationalists to identify groups, then divided them against each other. They use "critical theory" to criticize and destroy the status quo, social rules, norms, etc., to render society meaningless and unworkable, paving the way for the cultural revolution. They used "political correctness", "racist" and Alinsky tactics to shame the demonstrators into obedience, forcing them to adhere to the polices and principles of the progressive party and to their party line.

Using "Repressive Tolerance", they shut down debate and dissenting voices to silence their opposition. Only they have a right to an opinion because yours is oppressive. Politically correct ideas can only come from Progressives/Marxists and all incorrect ideas must be put out of their misery. They used "concept creep" recruiting the media, Hollywood, schools and other

institutions to advance their agenda and question the protesters' legitimacy. Historic symbols, books, and thoughts from the past are now targeted and must be destroyed. Everything except the Progressive/Marxist agenda is racist, white privileged, oppressive, etc. Only Marxist ideologies will be tolerated.

They used "racist" as a "symbol construction" to convey their ideas, beliefs and to strengthen their unity. They use the Antifa organization and all its resources as the structure with which to operate. Once they united behind a common symbol ("racist") they found a common enemy to unite against ("white nationalist"). This heightens their awareness to the similarities its members share as well as what differentiates them from that outside of their organization. Finally, they use "direct action" – the progressive party, the media, Antifa etc. - to block, disrupt and shutdown the demonstrators' free speech and right of expression. The use of conflict allows for the goal of the group to be clearly defined. With an established external antagonist ("white nationalist") the community's goal is to defeat that enemy. The price of a successful attack was the destruction of America's symbolic statues and civil war history and the constructive alternative was the Marxist ideology, turning Virginia blue.

They used Alinsky's strategy "the ends justify the means" and recruited George Soros' Antifa thugs to destabilize and shut down any point of view that was not aligned with their Marxist ideology. They attacked and undermined our culture, history, constitution, Founders, European heritage, and citizens. Adhering to the Alinsky philosophy, they did not worry about the methodology; they did what they had to do to win. As Stalin said, "you have to break a few eggs to make an omelet." As Alinsky said, "Winners write history, so you better be a winner." "politics and life are war" and the alternative to a corrupt victory is to "go home defeated with [my] your ethical hymen intact."

The bottom line is clear: kick ass and then pretend you were doing the moral thing. Lie, cheat, and steal for victory. If you must lie to win, then lie, and win, then lie about your lie. If you must win with brutality, then be brutal and win, and then rewrite history about your brutality. Always cloak your goals in widely agreed-upon American terms that people buy into - victory is what matters. All history is changeable and changing and people should ignore the wisdom of the past. Community organizers must be irreverent, mocking and questioning our values and morals using critical theory. The left needs to fight on both the political and cultural levels and the right is fighting only on the political level. Art, humor, song, etc. are all devices that can be used to influence the American people. The real action is in the enemy's reaction.

Even today the progressive media coalition is still getting mileage from the Charlottesville event and rewriting history about their brutality. They have cloaked their goals in widely agreed-upon American terms like racism that everyone buys into. Not only does progressivism's suppression, oppression, book burning, and destruction of historical cultural icons get overlooked, but their fascism gets "projected" onto their victims. Here's a direct quote from what is called Trump's Charlottesville 'both sides' speech: "I'm not talking about the Neo-Nazi's and the white nationalist because they should be condemned totally." Yet the progressive media coalition

keeps falsely reporting that Trump supported the white nationalist and they completely ignore Antifa's Progressive/Marxist violent aggression.

McAuliffe and George Soros are as much responsible for the murder of Heather Heyer, the girl who was run down in Charlottesville, as James Field Jr. They poured gasoline on the fire, incited a riot by recruiting Antifa and should be indicted under the RICO act. McAuliffe, along with the Clintons, were under FBI investigation for campaign and foundation violations. Miraculously, after McAuliffe paid FBI deputy director McCabe's wife \$750k to run for Virginia's senate seat, all the charges just disappeared. Instead of a McAuliffe investigation, we got a completely fabricated FBI Trump Russian collusion investigation.

V. Progressive Crimes Go Unpunished

Russian Collusion

The ultimate projection that Soros and the progressive ruling class tried to pull off was the Russia collusion hoax. Deceivingly, Hillary, the DNC, DOJ, FBI, CIA, NSA, etc. paid the Russians to dig up dirt on Trump, planted the phony story to fix the 2016 election, then accused Trump of colluding with the Russians to fix the election.

The progressives have forgotten Saul Alinsky's rule "A tactic that drags on too long becomes a drag." The progressive media coalition just keeps making up and spinning stories about Russian collusion even after thousands of emails produced from the accusers have proved and the creators of the dossier have admitted that they made it up to get Trump. The FBI and several liberal news organizations (e.g., Washington post, NPR, etc.) admitted they tried but could not verify the dossier. Those media outlets knowingly sat on this information for several months but did not make it public until Fox News pressured them on the air.

To advance the progressive ruling class agenda, the media makes up and then airs anti-Trump reports while withholding positive Trump reports. For example, when Donald Trump Jr. met with the Russian lawyer to gather dirt on Hillary, the media reported for days that he blocked a call to his father during that meeting. When proven untrue, there was no apology from the media: they just moved on to the next allegation. The networks dedicated 2,202 minutes to the Russian collusion hoax, but when the Senate's collusion report came out exonerating the president, the networks dedicated 0 minutes to those findings. The media also gave 849 minutes to the Ukraine/impeachment story and only 9 minutes to the glowing Trump economy.

When the Mueller report came up empty with no indictments, Nancy Pelosi had a conference call with her department heads telling them that the investigation was not over. In fact, Adam Schiff, Eric Swalwell, Jerry Nadler, Chris Coons, and other representatives promised to broaden their investigations. MSNBC, CNN, and other networks are either still insinuating and/or hoping there's evidence in Mueller's report to convict Trump or they are distorting the report outright.

Now that the Russian collusion story is falling apart, Rep. Schiff needs to fabricate another story to build his new lies upon. Committing witness tampering, Rep Schiff and his staff met with

Michael Cohen for over (10) hours prior to the house impeachment hearing. They coached Cohen into testifying that Trump inflated his assets to insurance companies and about Trump's relationship with the National Enquirer. Even after Schiff's corruption scheme has been exposed, he still used this fabricated coached testimony as probable cause to investigate other areas of Trump's personal life. Schiff also had a secret meeting with Glen Simpson in Aspen, CO, while Simpson was a witness for the House Intelligence Committee. His staff also coached the Ukrainian leaker (aka whistle blower) whom Schiff later denied knowing. Only Republicans go to jail.

Mueller's report concluded that there was no Trump-Russian collusion, but that is not stopping the progressives. Paul Sperry of RealClearInvestigations reported that George Soros and Rob Rayner have given \$10MM to key Democratic operatives and private investigators to keep the "Russian collusion" narrative alive. They are affiliated with a Washington-based nonprofit called The Democracy Integrity Project (TDIP). Its purpose is to pump out daily research briefings to prominent Washington journalists and Congressional staffers. TDIP is led by Daniel J. Jones, a former FBI investigator, Clinton administration volunteer and a top staffer to California Democratic Sen. Dianne Feinstein. They employ Fusion GPS co-founder Glenn Simpson and exBritish intelligence officer Christopher Steele. According to the project's email distribution list, recipients of the TDIP reports include staffers at the New York Times and Washington Post, investigative reporters at BuzzFeed, ProPublica and McClatchy, as well as news producers at CNN and MSNBC. Democratic aides on Capitol Hill also subscribe to the newsletter.

With the progressive ruling class, it is never over; they march on "Repeating the lie," not for good but for power. The facts about the phony Russian collusion story are now abundantly clear. The progressives tried to frame an incoming president with a false Russian conspiracy that they knew never existed. They tried to ruin Trump as a candidate and destroy him as a president. They tried to exonerate Hillary and frame Trump for a false crime. Even after the truth has been exposed, the progressives and their media marionettes still run with the false Russian collusion narrative. According to the FISA court documents, the FBI committed crimes by using private contractors to illegally spy on U.S. citizens. They spied not for legitimate law enforcement or national security reasons but rather to create false crimes against candidate, president-elect, and President Trump.

One America News, in their special, "The Assault on the Constitution", reported that The Obama administration spied on Trump during his campaign, his transition and well into the first year of his presidency. In October 2016 FISA was presented with a search warrant application from the justice department and FBI that claimed Russian influence within the Trump campaign. The FISA court approved the warrant not knowing it had been misled. OAN presented an 8-count indictment of the government's case. The court was <u>not</u> told that the Trump 'dossier': 1) was political opposition research, 2) was paid for by the Clinton campaign and DNC, 3) was described by Comey as "salacious and unverified," 4) contained information that was never corroborated and 5) was partially written by Christopher Steele, a British spy, who was desperate for Trump not to get elected. The court was also <u>not</u> told: 6) that Steele was fired for revealing FBI ties with the media, nor 7) that DOJ Bruce Ohr's wife, Nellie, who

worked for Fusion GPS (the firm commissioned to write the dossier) gave the dossier to her husband to funnel back to the FBI, nor 8) that the 'source' of Michael Isikoff's Yahoo article, which was presented to the court to 'corroborate the dossier', was the dossier itself!

The FISA court not only approved the warrant but approved (3) 90-day extensions not knowing the truth. FBI director James Comey signed off on (3) and FBI deputy director Andrew McCabe signed off on (1) of the FISA warrants. At the DOJ they were signed by Sally Yates, Dana Boente and Rod Rosenstein, each vouching for the truth and authenticity of the documents. The Grassley-Graham letter left no doubt that the FBI lied and deceived the court about the dossier's authenticity and verification.

Clinton longtime friends Sid Blumenthal and Cody Shearer also funneled Trump dirt to Christopher Steele through a State Department head, Jonathan Winer. The warrant was used to spy on Trump's campaign volunteer Carter Page and anyone he communicated with. This information was to be used to smear Trump to assure Hillary won the election, or as an insurance policy hoping to turn up damaging information to force Trump from office if he won. If this happened in another country, they would call it a coup d'état. As Lenin, Stalin and the progressives say to justify their murderous acts, "the end justifies the means". FBI's counterintelligence operation began in June 2016 when James Comey targeted Trump with false evidence while ignoring real evidence against Hillary. On July 5, 2016, Comey went on television to exonerate Hillary of her illegal handling of classified emails. FBI documents now reveal he wrote that speech months before they interviewed Clinton or her collaborators, making his investigation as phony as his dossier.

Bill Priestap, in charge of counterintelligence under Comey and McCabe, assigned Peter Strzok to lead the intelligence operation against Trump. This was the same Strzok who led the sham Clinton email investigation. Strzok exchanged anti-Trump and pro-Clinton texts with his mistress, DOJ attorney Lisa Page. Strzok's texts called Trump an "idiot" and Page described him as "loathsome." Page's texts suggested Strzok go easy on Clinton to which Strzok agreed. The two exchanged thousands of texts detailing how they were going to undermine Trump, including the now infamous "insurance policy," i.e., using the FISA warrant against Trump.

Across the street from the FBI, the head of the DOJ, Loretta Lynch, ordered Comey to call the Clinton investigation "a matter". The Clinton probe was further tainted when Lynch was caught meeting Bill Clinton at the Phoenix airport. We now know, through Lisa Page's and Peter Strzok's testimony, that Loretta Lynch gave James Comey direct orders not to charge Hillary Clinton. John Carlin, an Assistant Attorney General in charge of the DOJ's National Security Division under Loretta Lynch and Sally Yates, had his fingerprints on all national security surveillance operations. IG Michael Horowitz wanted to audit Carlin's division, but Sally Yates would not allow it. Later, in the FISA court memo, we discover why: Carlin's division was spying on U.S. citizens.

On September 26, 2016, Carlin confessed to the unauthorized surveillance and the following day announced his resignation. On the FBI side, Comey, McCabe, Strozk and Page have been

fired or left their positions. On the DOJ side, Loretta Lynch, Sally Yates, John Carlin, and Bruce Ohr are gone and all are facing possible criminal charges. Bill Priestap is believed to be providing evidence against Comey and others.

Spying on the Trump campaign began in early 2016, if not earlier, by private FBI contractors. The FISA court memo from Judge Collyer revealed the illegal disclosure of raw intelligence of U.S. citizens to contractors and the illegal activity of contractors and the FBI. The FBI's private contractors were looking for dirt by accessing data collected by the NSA. Some of these contractors were working for the DNC and Fusion GPS and continued accessing information well after completing their work. It was also discovered that the FBI had been feeding Christopher Steele information. After Steele reported that Michael Cohen was in Prague, the media gleefully ran the story claiming they now had Trump. Spoiler alert: it was not Cohen, and the only way Steele could have obtained that misinformation was from the FBI reports.

It is now known that Mueller, Comey, Weissman and Wray have worked together for over 20 years. They had a revolving door amongst themselves for years, exchanging roles in New York as DAs and prosecutors, FBI directors and deputy directors, to special counsel, etc. For example, Christopher Wray was Weissman's and Mueller's supervisor during the Enron and Arthur Andersen scandals in 2001. Mueller then became FBI Director while Comey was the DOJ's Deputy Director. Comey later became FBI Director while Rosenstein was DOJ's Deputy Director who hired Mueller as Special Counsel who hired Weissman to investigate Trump. Now Christopher Wray is Director of the FBI and he recently tried to seal critical information to protect Comey's misuse of FISA warrants. Anything to keep the ruling class in power.

Mueller was the FBI Director and Hillary was at the State Department when her Foundation solicited over \$245 million from foreign governments. Mueller was there during the Uranium One deal, when the Clinton Foundation collected over \$145 million from several of the Uranium One owners. In fact, according to Lou Dobbs, Mueller was the bag man that took the uranium sample to Russia before Russia made the purchase. Mueller was also the FBI Director when Comey left his position as DOJ's Deputy Director to become General Counsel and Senior Vice President at Lockheed Martin. Once Comey arrived at their firm Mueller gave Lockheed Martin several billions of dollars in FBI contracts. Comey earned 6 million dollars in one year, the same year Lockheed Martin became a Clinton Foundation donor. Comey had a membership on the Clinton Foundation corporate partner's board, and his brother Peter Comey's law firm does the Clinton Foundation 'taxes.

Documents recently uncovered show Rosenstein hired Mueller as Special Counsel the very same day Trump denied Mueller the position of FBI Director. All 18 lawyers on Mueller's panel were Democratic campaign contributors. This included Weissman, who attended Hillary's victory party, and Jeannie Rhee, the Clinton Foundation lawyer. There's speculation that Mueller was made Special Counsel to finish the coverup of the Clinton Foundation, FBI, and DOJ deals. Gifts Hillary received while at the state department were only a warmup for what was planned if she became president.

According to Dr. John C. Eastman, one of our country's leading constitutional authorities, the entire special prosecutor appointment was illegal for two reasons: 1) there was no underlying crime, and 2) it was based on an intelligence gathering operation or counterintelligence operation. Our legal system is based on the presumption of innocence: innocent until proven guilty. Mueller's report presumes guilt unless Trump can prove otherwise. Mueller cannot exonerate, he can only Indict, or not Indict, based on the evidence. According to Eastman, Mueller's whole report is garbage, based on over 125 regurgitated accusations made by the media. Many of those articles were based on purposeful debunked rumors, leaked, and circulated by the FBI; rumored accusations impossible to defend against.

Regarding obstruction, Mueller and his deputy director, Andrew Weissman, knew they had no obstruction of justice case because they lost a similar case, Arthur Andersen vs U.S., in the Supreme Court 9-0 in 2005. Mueller and Weissman have been using dummied FISA warrants, prosecuting, persecuting, destroying people and companies like Arthur Andersen for years. Many of their cases have been overturned because of their deceptive FISA warrant practices. They have been reprimanded by the courts several times and people have died in prison before their cases were overturned. It would be poetic justice to witness them getting a taste of their own self-righteous vigilante justice.

Like the Mueller investigation, the tyrannical progressives are still trying to undo the election by issuing general warrants, not for a crime, but to investigate individuals for crimes (e.g., taxes, business transactions, loans, etc.). One of reasons the Founders wrote the Declaration of Independence was because the King of England, George III, was issuing general warrants to shake down the colonists. That is why the Constitution has a fourth amendment, the right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers, and effects, against unreasonable searches and seizures. Except in an Obama court, it is against the law for the progressive Congress and their minions to abuse their authority by targeting and harassing someone, and anyone associated with them, until they can concoct a crime to ruin them. The Congress is supposed to oversee organizations like the IRS to make sure they are not abusing their authority, (e.g., denying the Tea Party's 501 (c) (3) status.) They are not to abuse their oversight authority by using these organizations to abuse others (e.g., extracting IRS tax returns to shake down citizens that are political opponents.) Congress is not setup to be a criminal investigation committee.

Unpunished Progressive Crimes

Terrorist acts committed by the left go unpunished while conservatives are accused of hate crimes. In February 2017, when Trump supporters were being attacked and beaten in Berkeley, the UCPD were ordered to stand down, after which the media hid the truth and lied about what they allowed us to hear. In April 2017, Eric Clanton, now a former CA college philosophy professor, was arrested for seriously beating unsuspecting protestors over the head with a bike lock at a Berkeley 'Free Speech' rally because they disagreed with his progressive ideology. He was released after 4 days and, although initially charged with 4 counts of felony assault with a deadly weapon causing great bodily injury, he eventually plead 'no contest' to 1 misdemeanor

battery charge, the felony charges against him were dismissed, and he took a deal resulting in 3 years of probation. In 2017, 2018 & 2019, historical statues in North Carolina have been toppled and/or defaced because they are considered 'racist' by the left-wing mobs causing the vandalism, yet no one has been punished. In February 2019, a pro-Trump activist recruiting people at UC Berkeley for Turning Point USA was punched in the face several times, had his table overturned and materials destroyed. It's been nearly a year and the case are still in its 'pre-trial" phase.

Ralph Northam (D) Virginia Gov, Mark Herring (D) Virginia State's Attorney, Justin Fairfax (D) Virginia Lt. Governor and Keith Elision, DNC's second in command and now Minnesota's (D) Attorney General, are all embroiled in rape, sexual violence and/or race discrimination scandals. They have not been charged or forced from office; they are living their lives as if nothing ever happened. If those were republicans, Black Lives Matters, Antifa and every media outlet would be in the streets demanding justice.

We're still waiting for all the people who orchestrated the coup in the DOJ, FBI, CIA, State Department, NSA, deep state, etc., to be brought up on charges (i.e., Obama, Clinton, Mueller, Weissman, Lynch, Comey, McCabe, Clapper, Brennan, Rice, Rhodes, Simpson, Ohr, etc.) We are still waiting for Hillary Clinton, Huma Abedin, and Cheryl Mills, etc., to be charged for false testimony and mishandling top secret information. We're still waiting for everyone involved in the Clinton Foundation's 'pay to play' scam (e.g., Uranium One, Puerto Rico etc.,) to be brought to justice for the millions they scammed from American taxpayers and foreign governments in their quid pro quo operation. We are still waiting for everyone who spied on and unmasked Americans to be brought to justice (e.g., Susan Rice, Ben Rhodes, Samantha Powers, etc.) In his book "Obstruction of Justice", Luke Rosiak slams Democrats Nancy Pelosi and Debbie Wassermann Schultz for the coverup of their Pakistani IT man, Imran Awan, and his computer theft of democrats' personal information and money. There was not even an investigation. McAuliffe's FBI investigation for campaign violations just disappeared.

VI. Progressive Ruling Class Applications

Universal Healthcare

Universal healthcare is a progressive Cloward and Piven trifecta dream: it will guarantee that nobody will be insured, bankrupt the country and usher in Marxism. It is unsustainable, creates cost inefficiencies, skyrocketing prices and premiums, huge deductibles, rationing, waiting lines, age discrimination and a two-tier rich-vs-poor healthcare system. According to Sally Pipes, the CEO of the Pacific Research Organization, over 200K Canadians come to the U.S. every year for treatment. They pay over \$13,000 per year in taxes for healthcare and the average wait time for Canadian care is approximately (6) months. Over 236K people in the UK wait an average of (6) months for a doctor's appointment, 36K more wait an average of (9) months. The UK puts a cap on all medical expenses for their patients and care is rationed according to age. The older you get the lower the cap. Presently, the UK has a shortage of 11K doctors because of low

government pay. 'Medicare for all' in the U.S. will devastate healthcare for the elderly, but the progressives have long stated that the faster old white people die off the better.

Prior to Obamacare, in 2009-2013, Gallup showed that 84-87% of the people were happy with their coverage and care but felt it was a little expensive. Progressives justified the 1.4 trillion-dollar cost of Obamacare by telling us that 30 million people were uninsured. Around 12 million of those were illegal aliens and another 11 million were 18-28-year-olds who felt they did not need insurance and wanted to take their chances. According to the GAO those 30 million uninsured individuals could have been put on Medicaid for \$30B, saving taxpayers over one trillion dollars annually. Now, after the Obamacare disaster, 30 million working people are not insured. Taxpayers are picking up the now skyrocketing premiums that used to be covered by the private sector. The deductibles average between \$8,000-\$11,000 and most people cannot afford to use their coverage. When the government became involved in healthcare, costs quadrupled. Similarly, when the government became involved in student loans, the cost of higher education quadrupled.

Forbes claims the so-called Affordable Care Act has been misnamed, especially for people who buy their health plans on their own rather than obtain it through an employer. While non-advocates and politicians have cited numerous examples of people facing huge premium increases, ACA advocates have responded that those are cherry-picked cases, or that premiums were increasing before ACA and would have increased anyway.

Those responses are no longer plausible. It turns out that across the board, for all ages and family sizes, for HMO, PPO, and POS plans, premium increases averaged about 60 percent from 2013, the last year before ACA reforms took effect, to 2017. In comparison, during the 4 years prior to the ACA, no group experienced a premium increase of more than 10 percent, and on average, most age groups experienced premium decreases.

New longitudinal data has been accumulated from eHealth, which sold ACA plans as well as a wide variety of health plans before the ACA was passed. The data broke down pre- and post-ACA changes by age, individual vs. family, and plan type. Overall, Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) premiums decreased 4.6% in the four years before the ACA reforms came into effect (from 2009 to 2013) but increased 46.4% in the first four years under the ACA. Point-of-Service (POS) premiums decreased 14.9% before the ACA and increased a whopping 66.2% afterwards. Premiums for the more common Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) plans increased 15% in the four years before the ACA, and 66.2% afterwards. Today, in 2019 ACA has now increased over 200%.

Two thirds of our population, 180MM, currently have private healthcare, and 121MM are under Medicare or Medicaid. Progressives now want to put everyone on Medicare, turning it into Medicaid, at a cost of \$30 trillion over 10 years, effectively bankrupting our country. They also want taxpayers to pay the healthcare for the additional 200 million legal and illegal immigrants that they plan to invite into our country over the next 30 years. When progressives

apply their redistribution ideologies on economies, the economies collapse. When that occurs, progressives project blame on capitalism, claiming the cure is more progressivism until we spiral down into resembling Venezuela. Just thirty years ago, extreme poverty worldwide was over 40%. Now, because of capitalism, it is down to 10%. It is bewildering why progressives reject liberty for Marxist tyranny.

Open Borders

Bill Clinton, State of the Union, 1995: "All Americans are rightly disturbed by the large number of illegal aliens entering our country. The jobs they hold might otherwise be held by citizens or legal immigrants. The public services they use impose burdens on our taxpayers.

Barack Obama on immigration, 2006: "When I see Mexican flags waving at pro-immigration demonstrations, I sometimes feel a flush of patriotic resentment. When I am forced to use a translator to communicate with the guy fixing my car, I feel a certain frustration."

Progressive ruling class policies and/or non-policies have caused the recent massive increases in illegal U.S. border crossings. Progressives have obstructed every remedy offered to resolve this issue because changing our demographics is fundamental to their takeover of our country. For example, the "New Way Forward Act", which so far has 44 democrat co-sponsors, would allow people who have committed serious felonies in other countries to move to the United States legally. It would require taxpayers to pay to transport deported criminals back into the United States upon their request. This bill would also make it nearly impossible for federal immigration officials to detain immigrants no matter how potentially dangerous they are.

Instead of being transparent in their intent, the progressives hide their objectives by projecting their blame on Trump. Progressives like Jacob Soboroff of MSNBC and Neera Tanden from the Center for American Progress, a Soros organization, continue making media rounds, blaming Trump for immigration problems that they have engineered. Instead of giving Trump credit for stopping the invasion which they created, they now claim people are fleeing Central America because Trump cut their financial aid. These patently untrue, wildly concocted lies are so hypocritical they take your breath away. Progressives incentivize and advocate open borders. There is no limit to the shameful redirect that they will use in their determination to destroy America for their global Marxist ideology.

Central Americans were fleeing to America long before Trump became president. Trump used the few remedies the progressives could not immediately take from him to resolve this issue. He threatened to cut the aid of the corrupt Central American governments because they were stealing and/or wasting our aid money while at the same time encouraging their people to leave. When their illicit behavior continued, he finally cut back their aid. Central American governments are happy to export their poverty and crime to the U.S. while collecting billions in aid and remittances. In return the progressives are happy to encourage hundreds of thousands of 'asylum seekers' and 'unaccompanied minors' to break our laws and illegally enter our country. Progressives refuse to change the asylum and Flores laws so they can bolster their

chances of taking over and controlling our country. The progressives continue using taxpayer money to encourage hundreds of thousands of illegals to rush our borders and then have the gall to blame Trump for the invasion.

To breach our countries sovereignty, progressives use America's immigrant heritage and "Repressive Tolerance". The mantra "we are a nation of immigrants" and calling Americans "oppressive white racists" are used to delegitimize our sovereign citizenship rights, our objections to their invasion and their illegal entry into our country. Progressives use this argument to allow illegal immigrants to get their foot in the door, then hold the door open for their families, and their families' families, and so on - a process known as chain migration. Massive legal and illegal immigration is another progressive, ruling class, Cloward and Piven scheme to take over the control of our country.

The U.S. declared its independence in 1776 and become a sovereign country in 1788. It was established as a white, European, English-speaking country based on European principles (e.g., Magna Carta, Adam Smith, Edmund Burk, John Locke, Thomas Paine etc.) Fifty years after the U.S. was created, in the early 1800s, after more Spanish, French, and Germans arrived, Mexico, Central and South America established their countries. Many U.S. families can be traced back to the 1600s, 200 years before those Latin American countries where formed. The genesis of France, Russia and other European countries were established between 800AD and 1100AD. Every country in the world started as a nation of immigrants. Can we invade them? Are they allowed sovereignty?

Soros and the progressives are using Alinsky's technique of "symbol construction" to strengthen unity within the illegal immigration movement. They fund and use government funds to support and draw loyalty from churches and other religious affiliations to create structured organizations with which to operate. They use religious symbols of the Catholic, Lutheran, Methodist, and other faiths that people identify with. This makes it easier to mobilize and implement "direct action", the invasion of Marxist Elvira Arellano's "Migrant Caravan" movement. The common enemy they unite against is the illegitimate white privileged racist oppressors. As in the Social Darwinian days, many of our religious leaders have become as corrupted by money and power as our politicians and should no longer be revered. The road to hell is paved with good intentions and let no good deed go unpunished.

Conservative media believes the reason the progressive ruling class recently changed their minds on border security is because they hate and want to stop Trump. That is partially true. The truth is that the progressives are Gorge Soros marionettes: he is their money source, connection, and puppet master. Soros is a Fabian, a One-World global open society cult that professes to remake the world in their image. After the progressives lost the election to Trump, Soros called their leaders to heel. Soros and his elite open border society members, the Davos globalists, ordered the progressives to resist American voters and open our borders just as they ordered the European leaders to resist the Brexit voters and open Europe's borders.

That is why the progressives suddenly flip-flopped and will not support border walls or change the law to immediately remove people who illegally enter our country. It is certainly not to advantage the working class who they previously professed to help. Now they support the Cloward and Piven plan, sanctuaries, taxpayer services for illegals, enact and support laws that support illegals over American citizens and represent non-citizens over citizens. For instance, the House just passed a law that prevents ICE from being contacted if illegals purchase guns, but they want to confiscate U.S. citizens guns.

Eleanor Acer Refugee Director for Human Rights First, really gets pissed when she cannot cost American taxpayer's billions by flooding our towns, neighborhoods, schools, and jails with 3rd world indigents. She is angry because asylum seeking men, not women or children, now must wait in Mexico while their case is being adjudicated. She works hard to assist Soros and to enrich the cartels by helping them release their human cargo directly in the U.S. Acer's aware that the illegals she helps will fade into the population and less than 3% will return for their court hearing. The only time that Acer and the illegals are remotely concerned with our laws is when they can manipulate them for their benefit, to further their invasion of our country. They cannot care less that they broke our laws by illegally crossing our borders, that they are illegally residing in our country, burdening American taxpayers, and sucking up our social services.

Veronica Escobar (D) El Paso, Texas, feels Trump is an anti-immigrant racist because he will not let her fellow Latino's flood endlessly and freely across our borders to help her political career. She feels that American taxpayers have an obligation to send lawyers to other countries to recruit, counsel and help Latino asylum seekers enter our country. Nevada's former Attorney General Catherine Cortez Masto catapulted herself into a (D) U.S. senate seat when she effectively made Nevada a sanctuary state and increased its Latino population from 9% to 30%. Masto did not care that this cost each Nevada resident an additional \$763 annually to house, feed, and educate illegal immigrants. Luis Miranda, the former DNC Communications Director, believes that we need an orderly legal means to further Hispanic immigration into America because Americans are not producing children anymore. Rather than incentivizing Americans to increase our population, DNC Hispanics want an orderly, legal takeover of our country with more Hispanic immigrants to increase their power. When DNC Hispanics feel entitled to dominate, control, subjugate and/or eliminate others by flaunting the law over another races, this is called racial supremacism, or racism. Still, progressives claim everyone else is the racist and they are not for open borders.

Pathetically, when appealing to moderate voters, progressives like O'Rourke, Gillibrand, etc., claim they are for border security. To the contrary, they support tearing down border walls, eliminating ICE, decreasing border security funding, and reducing retention center beds that force 'catch & release.' Progressives claim to support border security but have never presented a plan. They vote against border walls, changing asylum laws, Kate's law and eliminating sanctuary cities, and yet they claim to support border security. The truth is, Soros's progressives

holler racism and block every solution to fix the problem while millions of illegals continue to cross our borders.

At the expense of American workers and taxpayers, the progressive ruling class encourages illegals by granting them honorary citizenship and constitutional rights (e.g., amnesty, sanctuary, education, jobs, childcare, healthcare, welfare, tax incentives, driving privileges, voting rights, etc.) Texas Secretary of State David Whitley has announced that there are 95,000 non-U.S. citizens registered to vote in Texas, 58,000 of which have voted in at least one or more election. Communities throughout the U.S. (e.g., California, Maryland, etc.) have enacted laws allowing illegals to vote in local and state elections. Illegal voters benefit progressives but rob American citizens of their vote, representation, property, and liberty. This does not bother Nancy Pelosi, who stated in an interview that she supports illegal voting rights because it makes them feel more welcome. How is that for incentive?

The progressives are using illegals to take over our country and have decided that we are not allowed to know the cost and/or how many of them are flooding our schools, hospitals, jails, country, etc. They have forbidden those services from giving out that information. They are fighting in court to prevent a citizenship census question, to prevent us from even knowing how many illegals are in the country. We are not allowed to know their plan, how much it costs, or how many is enough. Using another of their moral imperatives, they preach, "it's the right thing to do". For whom, the corporate elite and their lemmings, the useful idiots who unwittingly support their greed? In truth, they are usurping power by importing millions of foreign voters that align themselves with their Marxist ideology and to hell with the citizens they are supposed to represent. They are importing new voters who are more than happy to vote to overthrow our government and make your stuff their stuff.

Progressives are hijacking our country, imposing taxation without representation, telling us to shut up and pay or be branded a racist. They have enacted legislation that prevents border walls, deportations, the deportation of illegal sponsors and the illegals they sponsor. In typical progressive mafia fashion, until they can pass open border laws that allow everyone in, they block border security, so everyone enters anyway: heads they win, tails you lose.

Nancy Pelosi stated in a news conference that illegals have the right to come here. One might wonder why progressive leaders represent illegals over American citizens. It is because, instead of representing the people's interest, they are doing George Soros's bidding. People who support illegal immigration support enriching the Mexican cartels who make billions off smuggling their human cargo. Smugglers cannot care less about the tragedies and costs they heap upon American citizens. Progressives represent Mexican Cartels and their drug, sex, and human smuggling operations. The factions of special interest that progressives represent are George Soros's Open Society, corporate globalist, cheap illegal labor, the U.S. Chamber of Commerce, Business Round Table, Wall street, Silicon Valley, Swift Meat Packing Co., SEIU, la Raza, the Mexican lobby, etc. They pretend to represent the downtrodden but really represent

the Marxist ruling class corporate elites. Remember, over 85% of Wall Street campaign funding goes to progressives.

True to Alinsky's rules "Make the enemy live up to its own book of rules", "Ridicule is man's most potent weapon", etc., Progressives tell Americans that walls are "immoral" and of course "racist". Meanwhile they fund abortions throughout Mexico and Latin America. Progressives voted for \$500K to fund walls in Jordan and voted to fund walls in the UK, Spain, Hungry, Israel and Tunisia. It appears that only walls protecting Americans and the U.S. are immoral.

Stacy Abrams and Joe Biden accuse Trump of "ripping children from their parents' arms" and "caging children", policies that began under Biden during the Obama/Biden administration. The truth is that these children are put in caged areas at night to protect and separate them from sexual predators. Maybe the illegals bear some responsibility? If they were not breaking our laws and illegally invading our country, we would not have to put them anywhere. They are supported by "People Without Borders" and assisting the Marxists that want to destroy us.

As usual, the progressive media coalition turns the illegal invaders into victims and heroes and turns American citizens into villains and oppressors. There is a moral parallel however: the illegals believe, as do the progressives, that if they surrender to our government our government will take care of them. It is also a self-fulfilling prophecy: the more illegals, the larger the progressives' voting base, who vote for more illegals, taxpayer benefits, the theft of Americans property and eventually the theft of America.

They preach, "That's not who we are" and "Reagan understood compassion at the border", but neither they nor the illegals have compassion or respect for American citizens. As they push their open border agenda forward, they implement the Alinsky rule "If you push a negative hard and deep enough it will break through into its counter side". They defund bed space and shop for activist judges who subvert laws that force law enforcement to release illegals into our country. Disciples of Cloward and Piven, progressives are the problem rather than the solution. To usher in their Marxist agenda, progressives create problems, then accuse anyone who does not bend to their madness of being "inhumane" or "racist". Tennessee Williams said, "the only thing worse than a liar is a liar that's also a hypocrite."

Progressives could turn off the magnet and resolve 95% of the border problems within hours by passing legislation to fix the asylum, Flores, and non-contiguous laws. All illegals caught entering the U.S. from other countries should automatically be returned to their country. After breaking our laws, illegals should not be rewarded by being allowed to remain in our country while waiting for a trial at the expense of our taxpayers. New legislation should: 1) eliminate asylum loopholes - people must apply for asylum outside of the U.S., 2) eliminate the Flores law - the ban on removing minors, 3) immediately remove those caught illegally crossing our border, without a court hearing, 4) zero tolerance - if caught entering illegally, they can never enter the U.S. again, 5) incrementally increase jail time with each illegal reentry, 6) prosecute

adults for child endangerment, 7) make E-Verify mandatory and) deny illegals any taxpayer benefits including schooling.

The U.S. could tax Mexico 25% on their remittances from the U.S. to fund the wall and its maintenance. Instead of calling the wall medieval, promote the wall as a modern wall with drones, sensors, cameras, and other advance technology. If there's money left over, reimburse the cost of housing, schools, medical, food stamps and welfare that the illegals have abused. The progressives, however, will probably argue that it is the American taxpayer's moral obligation to shoulder the burden of the illegals.

The GAO has determined illegals cost the federal government over \$225 billion annually. As noted by the real time calculator supplied by CIS, FAIR, DHS, Yale, MIT, and Institute for Defense, in the first eleven (11) months of 2019 an estimated 1,141,185 illegals have entered our country, and we were on pace to exceed 1.3MM by 2020. The U.S. Border Patrol reports that for every illegal caught an estimated (3) get away, yet the progressives still claim it is not an emergency. The U.S. houses over 11,000 illegal minors per day, at a cost of \$125 each per day, for a total cost of \$1,375,000 per day, paid by the U.S. taxpayers. That is nearly \$502 million a year just to house illegal minors. As noted by the real time calculator, in 2019 the average daily cost of all illegals to American taxpayers was \$475MM per day. As of November 2019, the cost of illegal aliens exceeded \$275B and this figure was expected to top \$300B by the end of 2019. In addition to federal dollars, illegals also cost state taxpayers annually (e.g., Florida \$6.29B, Texas \$11B, California \$23B, etc.) Texas pays \$1B annually in border security alone, California pays \$22B annually to educate illegals and house 42,000 prisoners who are here illegally, 24% of their inmate population. A Rice University study puts the cost of illegals at over \$800B per year when including crime, court, jail, property damage, fraud, tax evasion, state, local, etc.

In Feb. 26, 2019, Forbes magazine reported that healthcare for just 3.9 million uninsured illegals cost \$4.6 billion in federal taxes, \$2.8 billion in state and local taxes and \$3 billion in "cost shifting", i.e., higher insurance rates to US citizens to subsidize illegals. Americans subsidize \$18.5 billion in healthcare annually to unauthorized illegals. This forces many U.S. citizens to go uninsured because of the higher insurance cost they incur supporting illegals. A 2018 audit by Med-Cal discovered that 400,000 unauthorized illegals received healthcare benefits costing California taxpayers over \$4B annually.

The real time calculator estimates approximately 30MM illegals are now residing in our country. Pew reports we are housing over 44.5 million illegal immigrants, nearly 14% of our population, which would mean 1 out every 7 people living in our country is here illegally. A 25B dollar wall is a drop in the bucket to prevent even a portion of the billons in costs that Americans incur because of illegals. When the court overreaches, allowing illegals to remain in the country, forcing Americans to enroll illegals into their school system, giving them healthcare, welfare, and tax incentives programs, they have exceeded their separation of power. They have no business granting illegals de facto citizenship which imposes taxes on the citizenry, both of which are the purview of Congress.

According to the Border Patrol 138K illegals per year are held for crimes other than being here illegally, including over 4,000 murderers. True to their Cloward and Piven plan, progressives only want to provide 16K beds, leaving 122K criminal illegal aliens to be released into America, opening the borders to criminals. 50% of those illegals released reoffend within the first year and 75% reoffend within 5 years. Nancy Pelosi claims walls are ineffective and illegal women & children are not a security threat. Nancy lies and people die. According to the Border Patrol, walls slow illegal immigration, are 95% effective and many of those illegal women and children join MS13. Progressives want the crisis at the border which is why they pretend it does not exist. The border crisis is not manufactured but the humanitarian crisis is because the progressives incentivize them. Only thugs and progressives have the gall to organize and incentivize a caravan to attack the U.S. then project the blame onto Trump by accusing him of manufacturing its existence.

BorderFacts.com reported amnesty declarations are up 1700%, that 21,000 unaccompanied kids per month now cross our borders and over 240,000 families entered our country illegally in the first (4) months of 2019. Border Patrol reported that apprehensions are up 100% since October 2018, Fentanyl busts are up 184%, MS13 captures are up 174% and over 4,000 individuals are caught daily trying to illegally enter our country. They reported that 76K apprehensions were made in February 2019, up 30% from the prior month, 80% from the prior year. 103K apprehensions were made in March 2019, 144K in April and in May. Every illegal cost the American taxpayer \$82,000 per year, not including the children born to them once here. Border Patrol reported the illegals brought in 400,000 cases of malaria, TB, and mumps. According to the U.S. Census Bureau, 54% of legal and 70% of illegal Hispanics are on welfare. Wall Street Journal reported that in Portland, ME, 65%-70% of people receiving general assistance are noncitizen asylum seekers. Even when the truth is evident, progressives continue to dismiss the Border Patrol's crisis warnings and stick to their Cloward and Piven plan. They spread their debunked lies to the public claiming the border crisis is manufactured. Groucho Marx said, "who are you going to believe, me or your lying eyes?" or was that Nancy Pelosi and the progressives?

Progressives constantly cite a libertarian thinktank study from the CATO institute that argues immigrants commit fewer crimes than native Americans. This study has been debunked for several reasons but as usual it does not stop the progressive media coalition from "repeating the lie". The glaring discrepancies are in the methodology that fail to separate illegal from legal immigrants or Visa overstays who get background checks and go through the legal process. They also sampled a geographical area that was known to have low immigration crime rates.

John Lott's AZ study does not rely on self-reporting data, used 32 years of actual Arizona State prisoner data and separated citizens, legal and illegal residents. They found illegals were 142% more likely to commit crimes than natives, committed more serious crimes, served 10.5% longer sentences and were 45% more likely to be gang related. Younger illegal immigrants ages 15-35 committed more serious crimes at twice the native rate. Legal immigrants that go through the legal entry process, which includes a background check, commit lower average

crime rates. Illegal immigrants commit crimes at a rate more than 4 times that of native Americans or legal immigrants and constitute over 20% of the federal prison population.

An OAN study found incarceration rates by state population were much greater for illegals than for citizens or legal residents. For example, res% / illegal%: CA .05/1.7 (34 x more likely), NJ .03/1.8 (60 x more likely), AZ .06/3 (50 x more likely). According to the DOJ, illegals committing federal crimes made up 88% (8 in 9) of non-citizens convicted in 2018. They accounted for 40% of all convicts sentenced between 2017-2018. These are both illegals that crossed over the border illegally and/or overstayed their Visas. Their crimes included drug trafficking, kidnapping, sex crimes and murder. According to the Bureau of Justice statistics, 64% of federal arrests and 43% of federal prosecutions were non-citizens who make up 7% of our population. According to the GAO, 25% (1 out of 4) of all prisoners in the U.S. are foreign born, and this foreign-born prison population costs taxpayers around \$1.5B annually.

Not only do Luis Miranda and the DNC want a legal orderly takeover of our country, they want the U.S. taxpayer to pay the illegals to take us over. This is worse than being forced to train the worker who is replacing you. They not only want your job; they want your country. The cost to poor and middle-class Americans is of no concern to the millions of illegals who pour into our country every year, nor is it a concern of Miranda, the DNC, the elites who benefit or those who vote for progressives and support the DNC. In fact, they are more concerned about the welfare of illegals than the welfare of American citizens. Progressives elected by American citizens seem to think they represent illegals rather than American citizens.

Our country's population decline began in the 1960's when the environmentalists frightened us into believing that we were overpopulated. This overpopulation hysteria gave rise to an organization called Planned Parenthood which controlled population growth through various methods of birth control. In the 60's, when the hysteria began, the U.S. population was 170 million people, 87% of whom were white. According to the Migration Policy Institute we had far less immigration then, less than 125K per year. Grateful to be here, most immigrants were anxious to assimilate instead of aiding progressives in the overthrow of our government.

Little did we know at that time that we needed to cut back on our birthrates so that we could import and accommodate the immigrant population. Since the 60s overpopulation hysteria we have almost doubled our population, now around 330 million people, and less than 62% of the population is white. More than 2 million immigrants come here a year, 1 million legally and another million illegally, increasing our population by almost the size of Chicago annually. A February 2019 Pew poll asked Hispanics in the U.S. about the number of immigrants in America. 73% felt there were too many or about the right amount, and only 14% felt there were too few. According to the Bureau of Labor, in the U.S., 94% of all farmworkers are U.S. citizens, 2% are illegals & 2% are legal non-citizens. 75% of custodians are U.S. citizens. It appears these are jobs Americans will do. The only people who think there are not enough immigrants are corporate donors, left wing activists and media outlets like CNN. Still, greedy progressive globalists advocate for the destruction of white America, call us racist, then demand we welcome and

support even more immigrants. Environmentalists, fearing a progressive backlash and the loss of their funding, not only remain silent but condone this environmental onslaught.

The Pew Research Center estimates that immigrants and their children will constitute 82% of our population growth from 2005-2050. Pew's 2008 report had projected the U.S. population would reach 438 million by 2050. It is now projected that, between 2010 and 2050, 79.5 million additional immigrants will take up residence in the U.S., and that they will produce 55 million children thereby increasing our population by 135 million by 2050. It is now anticipated, when combining native with immigrant growth, our population will increase to 571 million by 2050. Those projections were made prior to the 2019 Central American invasion during which it has been projected that 1.2 million illegal immigrants entered the U.S. Those are just the ones who were caught; 3X that get away.

We cannot manage our nation's ecological footprint unless we stabilize our population. But we cannot stabilize our population without reducing annual immigration to a sustainable level. According to a FAIR report, immigrants create 213% more damage to the U.S.'s environment than they do to their home county's environment. When immigrants come to the U.S., they quadruple their CO2 emissions and cattle consumption, increase their use of fertilizer by a factor of six, increase their forest footprint by 357% and birth 1.5X more children than they do in their home country. The average immigrant uses 550,000 gallons of water annually. The decline of water levels coincides with an increase in water pollution. Nationwide, an estimated 40 percent of rivers, 46 percent of lakes, and 50 percent of estuaries are too polluted for fishing and swimming. This is more pronounced in the southwest which is prone to droughts.

According to FAIR, the average urban driver now spends more than 100 hours per year commuting to work compared to just 16 in 1982, an increase of 525%. The Texas Transportation Institute's annual study of traffic congestion in urban areas found that, in 2005, Americans spent 4.2 billion hours delayed in traffic and wasted 2.9 billion gallons of fuel. That is enough wasted capital to fund all cancer research in America for the next 13 years. Increased traffic means more than wasted time and money; it means higher greenhouse gas emissions due to idling cars and more chemical runoff which pollutes our nation's waterways and your backyard. From 2000-2010, 70% to 90% of sprawl nationally was caused by immigration-driven population growth. Our government continues to cover up the impact of immigration by avoiding producing an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) on immigration.

Now, instead of assimilation, its "multiculturalism", "diversity" and "critical theory" - the same identity politics the Marxists brought from the School of Frankfurt. Their ideology creates, then divides groups against each other to gain moral authority, destroy the status quo and pave the way for the cultural revolution. This destructive multiculturalism has been found by sociologists and psychologists, like Harvard's Robert Putnam, to create isolation, crime, depression, low wages, welfare, crumbling communities, and other multicultural pitfalls. People in these diverse communities tend to vote less, volunteer less, give less to charity, work less on community projects, and trust their neighbors 50% less than people in more homogenous settings.

Not a day passes that the progressive media, academia or some progressive protest assails the European heritage upon which this country was founded. White people are now told that this isn't their country, that they didn't build this, that they're no longer welcome and need to return to Europe; that white oppressive racists must die, will soon be replaced, need not run for public office, and that their evil Constitution and white culture must be destroyed. Astonishingly, white progressive Kool-Aid drinkers still vote for their own and their family's demise. Remember when the children of the Moonies cult had to be deprogrammed?

The massive numbers of people pouring in have not been invited: they are invaders. This invasion is not a religious humanitarian cause to embrace. It is orchestrated and planned by the global elites and cartels to enrich themselves and steal our country. Like uninvited house guests with their uninvited friends who have stayed too long, they now complain that you have become an imposition in your own home. They no longer like the food you serve, the programs you watch and now they want you to leave. It is apparent that our corrupt politicians and judges no longer represent the American citizens who voted them into office. They are paid for by the global corporate elites and only represent the global elites and the illegal perpetrators they endorse. John Adams said, "Liberty lost is lost forever."

Climate Change

Climate change is another hysteria the progressive ruling class has promulgated to maintain their control and moral superiority. Climate change gives them more control over people's behavior than healthcare. Progressives certainly do not seem to be concerned about the damage that 250 million more legal and illegal immigrants will do to our environment. While the progressive elites are selling climate gloom and doom, they are flying around in private jets, living in 500,000 sq. foot houses, heating their pools, and driving Hummers. They sensationalize fabricated information, then use their media friends to peddle their propaganda to increase taxes and pass laws that control and limit your freedom. Like their progressive counterparts in Europe, they want to deny you cheap energy, making it more expensive to heat your house, drive to work and purchase goods. High energy costs keep you poor and submissive, restricting your movement and freedom.

Regulation, like the Clean Water and Air Act, is needed to prevent hazards like the Cuyahoga River fire of 1969, when factories dumped raw sewage into our rivers and backyards. Not needed is self-righteous progressives using climate change to control every aspect of our lives, lording over our backyard mud puddles, toilets, light bulbs, meat, diet, etc. For example, plastic straws comprise less than .05% of all plastic waste, yet they are the latest progressive weapon used to push people around and disrupt lives. According to the World Economic Forum, 90% of plastic waste dumped in the ocean comes from (10) rivers: (8) in Asia and (2) in Africa. But the cowardly progressives will not go after China because they would get their asses handed to them.

According to the EIA's website, U.S. CO2 emissions generated from electricity in 2015 decreased to their lowest levels since 1993 thanks to our technological advances in fossil fuels. However, recent studies argue whether CO2 traps greenhouse gases that supposedly cause warming. Ed Berry, Ph.D., Physics, claims the UN Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) has grossly miscalculated human-added CO2. His new calculations show human CO2 does not cause climate change. In fact, his new evidence shows no amount of reduction of CO2 emissions will have any measurable effect on climate change. Nature controls the level of atmospheric CO2. Additionally, ice core data from Greenland reveals 8000 years of zero correlation between CO2 and temperature: CO2 does not drive temperatures. This new information makes fraudulent all claims, laws, actions, and treaties that seek to reduce CO2 emissions.

The (IPCC) does acknowledge there is little chance weather is connected to climate change. Still progressives try to prevent third world countries from using fossil fuels even though the dung, wood, and other substances they burn shorten their lives and emit far more pollutants than do coal, oil, or gas. Progressives want to impose a carbon tax that will cost the poor and middle-class billions more in goods and services each year. China and India emit over 70% of the worlds CO2 and should regulate their stink. The progressive cowards, however, go after the country that puts the most controls on their emissions, feeling safe in their plot to destroy the American economy through a socialized redistributed carbon tax regulation.

The progressive corporate global elites who benefit financially from globalization have hatched a global redistribution scheme to collect a global tax and capitalize on the global climate change hysteria that they created. They want us to finance their global prospects, the infrastructures of underdeveloped countries, by imposing a global carbon tax through the Paris Climate Accord. This would syphon money into the globalist's pockets, finance their ventures, destroy America's sovereignty, and redistribute hard working middle-class American's incomes globally to China, India and third world countries, while the polluting countries contribute nothing: a quadfecta.

A few years ago, the Russians hacked the University of East Anglia's email and found that European and American universities were falsifying climate change data to frighten people. Their emails revealed that they kept the climate change charade going so that they could continue their flow of grant money. Michael Mann, the individual behind the infamous climate hockey stick data, was a central figure in the East Anglia email scandal.

Most recently the progressives made it appear that a climate change report was produced by our federal government. Supposedly that report proved that, because of manmade pollution, life as we know it would end within 12 years. The media, like children, ran with this propaganda: MSNBC called Trump criminal, the Washington Post accused the President of playing with matches and CNN insinuated that Trump was too dumb to believe in science and that their children would be burned alive on the planet. Discovered a few days later, but not mentioned by the media, was the fact that the report was written by a Berkeley professor named Rising who stated on social media that he wanted Trump eliminated and claimed

religious extremists are overrunning the world. The report was financed by Steyer and Bloomberg, both elite globalist billionaires with global financial interests and whose businesses benefit from globalization. Steyer and Bloomberg, both presidential hopefuls, gave the report to holdover Obama bureaucrats to publish, making it look as though it was a government generated report.

The truth of course does not matter to progressives. The media continue to use this debunked fabrication to bolster their propaganda. Ocasio-Cortez, who fits the progressive pathological profile, used these deceptive lies to support her Marxist Green New Deal agenda. In a Washington Examiner interview, Ocasio-Cortez's Chief of Staff, Saikat Chakrabarti, made an unexpected disclosure. "The interesting thing about the Green New Deal," he said, "is it wasn't originally a climate thing at all." The reporter, Ricketts, greeted this startling notion with an attentive poker face. "Do you guys think of it as a climate thing?" Chakrabarti continued. "Because we really think of it as a how-do-you-change-the-entire-economy thing." When Beto O'Rourke joined the presidential race, he cited the report claiming the world will end in 12 years due to climate change, despite the fact this report had already been debunked. John Kerry cited drought as the cause of the Syrian war and refugee flight, until it was discovered precipitation in that region had increased. Progressives are using this same bogus cause to explain the Central American's flight. There is that "end justifying the means" thing again.

Green Peace founder Patrick Moore said he does not know why they say the world is coming to an end in the next 12 years because air and water have been getting cleaner for the last fifty years. Moore claims that as China, India and Africa are pulling themselves out of poverty, they are working on cleaning their environment. He said the people who put together the Green New Deal are basically fronts for organizations like Justice Democracy and the Sunrise Movement. He said that, in the last 300 years, the global climate has only warmed between 1 and 1.5 degrees Celsius, which is nothing compared to the fluctuations during the Little Ice Age between 800AD-1700AD, or the prior medieval warming period. These are just the most recent small swings that have occurred compared to the Ice Age in 11,000BC and glaciations that have occurred throughout the centuries. Life flourishes during warming periods. Moore claims global warming has turned into a money-making political racket that is scaring children.

In 1970, Harvard's Nobel Prize winner, George Wald, claimed that climate change would end civilization in the next 15-30 years. In 2006, Al Gore said that sea levels would soon rise by 20 feet. However, sea levels have only risen 3 inches between 1993 and 2019. Now Ocasio-Cortez is out ringing the same old alarm bell, telling people their homes will soon be under water. Obama's Science Czar said global warming would lead to one billion deaths by 2020. A June 29, 1989, AP report by Peter Spielman read: "A senior U.N. environmental official says entire nations could be wiped off the face of the earth... if the global warming trend is not reversed by the year 2000." Progressives are still singing the same siren song today. Journalist and satirist H.L. Mencken said: "the whole aim of practical politics is to keep the populace alarmed (and

hence clamorous to be led to safety) by menacing it with an endless series of hobgoblins, all of them imaginary."

Progressives want to destroy America by implementing their radical socialist ideologies such as Ocasio-Cortez's Green New Deal. They want to destroy our energy resources, infrastructure and healthcare systems and replace them with their massive government-run redistribution programs with open borders. Ocasio-Cortez and the progressives published on their Green New Deal website a statement saying that they will abolish airplanes and all fossil fuels, and that people who are unwilling to work will receive paychecks! Then they took it down, claiming it was never published.

The Green New Deal means you must submit to their ruling class tyranny, their control of every aspect of your life (i.e., speech, guns, travel, diet, healthcare, property, purchases, etc.) or they'll destroy America by riots, identity politics, changing demographics and open borders. Either way they are determined to bring down America and replace it with their fascist Marxist policies. Vladimir Lenin said: "The goal of socialism is communism." Karl Marx's communist adage was "each according to their ability, each according to their needs." It should have been "with socialism, in the beginning everything is a 'right' (e.g., healthcare, housing, food, education, etc.) but in the end, nothing is a right."

Ocasio-Cortez is the poster child on how socialized governments turns into tyranny. Already obsessed with power, she is demanding, for our own good, control over all our individual liberties (e.g., free markets, property, guns, healthcare, food, money, etc.) Soon after being placed on the powerful House Oversight Committee, Ocasio-Cortez threatened Donald Trump Jr. because he tweeted about her. Taunting him, she suggested he keep tweeting because she now has subpoena power over him. Recently Ocasio-Cortez stated: "If you do not like the Green New Deal come up with your own ambitious, on-scale proposal to address the climate crisis. Until then we're in charge-and you're just shouting from the cheap seats...I'm the boss."

Evidently, after citing the debunked Bloomberg/Steyer climate change report that was bolstered and fraudulently substantiated by the media, her Green New Deal and the climate crisis are now forgone conclusions and we must all obey. To further their agenda, Ocasio-Cortez and the progressives continue to use Alinsky's Rules for Radicals technique, 'repeat the lie until it becomes the truth'. Ocasio-Cortez is now creating a list of all democrats who work with republicans 'across the aisle' and is going to share the list with activists who will target those democrats in the primaries. It is starting to look a lot like 1930s Germany, or Cuba.

VII. Big Government vs Little Government

Note: The COVID-19 pandemic occurred during this writing, and the economic lockdown has temporarily altered our financial situation. However, applying these same small government principles of lower taxes, less regulation, and other free market forces will hasten us back to a

normal recovery and a return to the booming economy we were all experiencing and enjoying, even for those who don't want a normal recovery.

Ocasio-Cortez isn't alone in progressive totalitarianism: Sen. Warren wants to roll back tax cuts and impose a wealth tax similar to King George III's 1776 Stamp Act that helped trigger our Revolutionary War; Mayor De Blasio wants to confiscate Americans' money claiming it's in the hands of the wrong people; Obama says it's "everybody's money not yours...you didn't earn that." George Bernard Shaw said: "Power does not corrupt men; fools, however, if they get into a position of power, corrupt power." Tomas Jefferson said: "When the government fears the people you have liberty; when the people fear the government, you have tyranny."

Faced with the overwhelming success of the Trump economy the progressives try to tout Obamas economy. However, the Federal Reserve reported that mathematically the Obama/Biden administration had the worst recovery after a recession ever recorded. Progressives are terrified that people will find out their policies do not work, but that Trump's policies do, so they will go to any length to stop them, let alone give them a chance to succeed. In fact, Trump's conservative policies are again proving that progressive ideologies are not only wrong but harmful to open and free societies. Progressives can't let you know that free markets and tax cuts increase individual liberty, wealth, government revenue and innovation that benefit everyone; that universal healthcare is unsustainable, creates cost inefficiencies, skyrocketing prices, huge deductibles, rationing, waiting lines, age discrimination and a two-tier rich vs. poor health system. Again, Medicare for all will devastate the elderly's healthcare.

Progressives have no rational arguments, so they expound moral imperatives. For example, we are told if we do not adhere to their Marxist, climate, healthcare, open border policies, we are all racist and going to die. Therefore, progressives and their "controlled societies" are good and you must obey. Conservatives and their "open free societies" are bad, icky and evil and must be destroyed. That is their case, what they call science, and everyone else is a flat-earther.

According to the Congressional Budget Office (CBO,) Trump's tax cuts have increased the revenue in 41 states by an average of 13%, effectively offsetting the cost of the tax cuts. Record increases of revenue are also occurring at the federal level. Trump has made America the world's number one oil producer, decreasing our energy dependence on hostile nations. He has increased our average GDP from Obama's 1.5% to over 2.5%, saved American's billions by cutting regulations, and created over 7MM jobs, all in less than three years. It took Obama 8 years to supposedly "create or save" 8MM jobs. According to U.S. Labor statistics, from 2009-2016 Obama lost 250K manufacturing jobs whereas from 2017-2018 Trump created 600K, the highest increase since 1997. When questioned how Trump was going to bring back manufacturing jobs, Obama remarked: "What's he going to do? Wave a magic wand?" Evidently Trump found the wand.

Trump reduced unemployment to 3.5%, lowered Black and Hispanic unemployment to the lowest levels on record and increased salaries by 16%, the first working class salary increase in

over a decade. Unemployment has been below 4% for (21) consecutive months, the longest streak in 50 years, with (106) months of job growth. He decreased food stamp dependency by over 5 million while creating a labor force participation rate of 65.5%, the highest since 1969. The IRS reported that over 90% of Americans have benefited from the Trump tax cuts. Tax cuts alone increased the average American's annual income by \$1,400 and raised the annual income of a family of four by an average of \$2,900. Trump increased the average child family tax credit by over \$2K, increased median household income from Obamas \$62,037 to Trump's \$65,666 and increased total average annual family income by more than \$7,000. Banks are loaning again and, according to the U.S. Census Bureau, the poverty rate is now at 12.3%, the lowest in over a century. This was all accomplished without bailouts, the Federal Reserve printing money or 0% interest rates. When Trump unleashed the free market system, it fueled our economic engine, grew business, made labor more competitive and businesses voluntarily increased wages. Contrarily, Progressive ideologies damage economies by growing government, taking money out of our economy, redistributing money, overregulating then forcing businesses that they crippled to involuntarily increase wages until they must close their doors.

Obama said Isis would be around for generations and they grew under his presidency for 8 years. Trump eliminated them in just over 1 year. Trump stopped the threat of North Korean missiles and entered denuclearization negotiations for the first time in forty years. He rescued hostages from Turkey, China, North Korea, and Syria. He pushed through the first criminal justice reform legislation in 16 years to help rehabilitate and reintegrate first-time offenders back into communities. He increased U.S. trade by billions after renegotiating trade deals with South Korea, Japan, Mexico, and Canada and is making progress solving the EU's and China's unfair trade practices. The International Trade Commission claimed Trump's Mexican/Canadian trade deal, the USMCA, is the best trade deal ever, that it will create a bigger, positive, economic impact than every trade deal going back to 1984. Trump is fighting the ruling class corporate globalist that want millions of illegals to invade our country each year, that take our jobs, flooding our schools, hospitals, welfare offices and break the backs of middle-class taxpayers.

Trump made NATO countries pay their fair share of the defense budget, up \$400B, reducing the burden on American taxpayers. Two years ago, only (3) nations payed 2% of their GDP. Now (15) nations are paying 2%. Trump pulled us out of the bad Iran treaty, and out of the Paris Climate Accord, which even the French rejected and are rioting over. This saved American taxpayers billions that would have otherwise been paid to the global elites and corrupt third world countries. It should be noted that, according to the EIA website and contrary to what progressives say, despite the U.S. pulling out of the Paris Accord, the U.S. has lowered its CO2 emissions to 1993 levels, exceeding expectations and beating all of the Accord countries. Thanks to our technology, this was accomplished without using the progressive's heavy-handed, destructive, redistributive carbon tax policies, saving Americans billions in extra cost. For all this, he must die!

Americans are far better off economically, environmentally, and internationally than they ever were under Obama or either Bush. Yet still the progressive media coalition does not care what is best for our country. They want their Marxist power back and pretend Trump's accomplishments never occurred. Instead they spread propaganda that our country is on the wrong track. They claim Trump is incompetent and is running the country into the ground, and they want to expedite his departure. They want to return to their failed progressive policies immediately, claiming they will create better jobs, higher wages, and a better, more secure life. What is not reported is that by using free market principles, Trump already fulfilled most of those promises - promises the progressives never kept, nor could ever keep, under socialism.

The progressives use Alinsky's "Pick the target, freeze it, personalize it, and polarize it" and of course "Ridicule is man's most potent weapon" to try and destroy Trump. Despite all Trump's progress, the progressive ruling class wants their power and control back by any means necessary so they can get back to the business of destroying America. They will throw tantrums, riot, lie, cry, block, beat, cheat, burn, open borders and steal to get their power back. They want to impeach, jail, and behead Trump for the crime of trying to resurrect our country, for the crime of stopping the global corporate raiders from pilfering, plundering, and planning the third world invasion of America. Progressives long for the good old days, for policies of no growth, no jobs, welfare, high taxes, identity politics, massive legal and illegal immigration, and Isis beheadings. That is when progressivism thrives best: during periods of misery, when they are shredding and robbing America. The open-minded tolerant thugs figure they win either way. If they destroy Trump, they win; if not, no one else will dare to be foolish enough to take a stand.

To regain control and maintain power, progressives have funded hundreds of organizations that advocate for the destruction of America (e.g., Antifa, Black Lives Matter, By Any Means Necessary, la Raza, Moveon.org, Occupy Wall Street, SEIU, Socialist Worker, Southern Poverty Law Center, Voice of Revolution, etc.) Their agenda: One-World order, globalization, PC mind control, social justice, and the forever elusive egalitarianism - your basic garden variety Marxist ideologies. Progressives do not care that the free exchange of ideas benefits people. Not only do they not care, but the benefits that free markets and individual liberties provide to Americans enrage them. The free exchange of ideas makes it hard for the progressives to gain and keep power. Remember, Joseph Stalin said: "Ideas are more powerful than guns. We would not let our enemies have guns, why should we let them have ideas."

Unwittingly, the progressive lemmings are doing the bidding of the global elites and the Davos One-World order crowd (e.g. George Soros, Bloomberg, Steyer, etc.) who profit from and want to remake the world according to their Fabian ideology. The 2019 topic at Davos was (surprise!) globalization, and America is standing in their way. Ronald Reagan once said Americans can vote with their feet, meaning if you do not like the policies in one state you can move to another state more suitable to your liking. Progressives are not only trying to eliminate this option in America by turning all the states blue, but they also want to eliminate free markets and individual liberty globally. Progressives will not move to blue states and leave red states

alone, they must proselytize. The global elites cannot put social controls on you in one country then let you move to other country, a "global safe space" like America, to escape their controls. That is why most progressive organizations are global like the Black Lives Matter movement. For example, Wade Rathke, the SEIU's former head who recently helped turn Nevada into a progressive state, has ties throughout America and Europe and now heads the International Communist Party. Progressive do not like giving people choices: Marxism requires total control.

Instead of rallying behind the president to help ensure our continued success, the Marxists prefer to take their power back. Contrary to the evidence, they constantly and without merit demonize and demean Trump by claiming he lies, is a racist, is insane and/or unfit for office. These 3rd grade tactics are not new, they are straight from the Sal Alinsky Rules for Radicals playbook. In 2000, the progressive racist Maxine Waters loved calling George W. Bush a racist, and she loves calling Trump a racist today. In 1964, a publication called "Fact" had 1,189 psychiatrists claim Barry Goldwater was psychologically unfit to be president. Today, CNN and MSNBC's news anchors, with their television psycho analyst, proclaim daily that Trump is psychologically unfit.

When the democrats were out of power, they used Alinsky's rule "Power is not only what you have but what the enemy thinks you have" to highjack the Attorney General's office. They frightened Trump's administration into believing they had the authority to block Sessions' replacement. They used this rule to prevent Special Counsel Mueller's firing. Mueller then used their completely concocted Russian collusion hoax to go on a witch hunt, searching for a crime to pin on Trump. They also used this rule to try and dissuade Trump from declaring a national emergency by bluffing retaliation if he tried to build a wall on our southern border.

The Progressive Media Coalition's constant degrading makes it harder for Trump to negotiate on our behalf with business and world leaders. For instance, while Trump was in Vietnam at the North Korean nuclear summit, the progressives deliberately scheduled the Cohen hearing to divert the public's attention away from the summit, while at the same time the U.S. Intelligence Community and DNI Dan Coats undermined Trump by publicly saying that North Korea won't give up their nukes. Instead of backing our president by reporting potential progress in the hopes of averting nuclear war, the children were busy undermining him by spinning dirt about the Cohen investigation. This is part of their win-win strategy: impede America's progress or bring America down - either way it advances their Marxist agenda.

Peter Morici, an economist from the University of Maryland, said that the liberal anti-Trump press is downplaying our economy by running a campaign of doom. Chuck Schumer announced from the senate floor that the economy for middle-class families is not good. After Bill Maher's comment about hoping the economy goes into recession in order to defeat Trump, the media wrote these headlines in November-December 2018: 'For the American Economy Storm Clouds on the Horizon', 'A Stock Market's Dangers are Easier to See Now', 'American Capitalism is Not Working' and 'What is a Recession, Why Are People Talking About the Next One' (New York

Times); 'Trump's Big 2020 Problem: the Economy Could be in a Recession' (Washington Post); 'Many Factors Will Impact the 2020 Race... A recession and a Growing Deficit' (USA Today.)

When it was reported in December 2018 that 312K new jobs were created, the average number of monthly new jobs created increased by 241K, there were 7.3MM job openings, the average monthly hourly wage increased by 3.3% and non-supervisor's wages increased by 3.5%, the Wall Street Journal's headline read: 'Sorry for the Good News'. This exposed the irony of the media outlets which had been downplaying the economy, hoping for its failure. Further angering the progressive media coalition, a February 2019 report revealed that personal income had risen 1% and savings were up from 6.1 % to 7.6%. The media had been working 24/7 alongside the progressives trying to create a self-fulfilling prophecy by frightening people. They were deliberately trying to destroy our economy by creating panic, continuously suggesting that it is going to crash, selling the uptick as a sugar high and hoping for a downslide. They did this not for the good of our country but to regain power and hide the fact that tax cuts work. Most recently, the progressive media coalition tried to crash our markets by using the coronavirus to spread panic and fear. Trump is right: the media is the enemy of the people. So much for the progressive ruling class's moral imperative argument.

The IRS reported that 90% of Americans have benefited from Trump's tax cuts, the average American's annual income has increased by \$1,400 and the annual income of a family of four has increased by \$2,900. Still, because of the progressive media coalition's constant lie that only the rich are benefiting from the tax cuts, polls indicate that only 40% of the U.S. population approve of the tax cuts. The progressive media coalition's propaganda is working, convincing people to drink their Kool-Aid and vote against their own interests. The progressive ruling class will stop at nothing to regain power; not for the good of the country, but to control it.

The progressive media coalition sided with Mexico and Canada, calling Trump an irresponsible bully when he was renegotiating NAFTA to the USMCA. When he negotiated a better deal that benefited everyone, the media pretended nothing happened. The media is using similar tactics while he is negotiating deals with the EU, China, North Korea, Iran, etc. Wall Street is negotiating with China against American interests, i.e., 40% of the profits of Goldman Sachs and other global Wall Street firms come by the way of China. Peter Navarro, Trump's Director of Trade, claims that unregistered Wall Street foreign agents (e.g., Paul Manafort, who is in jail because of this) are aiding China and fighting American trade negotiations.

The media claimed to be offended and ashamed when Trump ask NATO countries to pay their dues to lessen the burden on American taxpayers. Pre Trump, (3) countries paid the agreed upon 2% GDP, now 15 countries pay their 2%, netting NATO an additional \$400B annually. NATO's Secretary General, Jen Stoltenberg, said by making NATO share the burden of their own defense, Trump has unified and emboldened NATO while alarming Putin. Nancy Pelosi and the Progressives, however, are spreading the exact opposite propaganda, claiming he is dividing NATO and has emboldened Putin. Before the government shutdown, Nancy, and her delegation where set to meet with NATO to undermine Trump's negotiations. Evidently the big-spending progressives feel American taxpayers should keep picking up the annual \$400B tab for NATO so

Nancy and her ilk can continue getting sweetheart deals while hobnobbing with Europe's elite. Maybe by crushing the American taxpayer they can claim capitalism does not work and can further advance their Marxist agenda. Maybe Nancy could help NATO by butting out and letting NATO help themselves.

The progressives turned Kim Jong-Un into a victim and exonerated him after he launched missiles towards Japan. They blamed the missile launches on Trump because of the pressure he applied on North Korea after Kim's aggression. Trump's critics went silent after the strategy worked, now they accuse him of not denuclearizing North Korea fast enough. They cried 'apocalypse!' when Trump pulled out of the Paris Climate Accord saving American taxpayers from being the only ones paying billions to the global elites and corrupt third world countries. Even French citizens are rioting over the Accord's cost and want out. After Trump pulled out of the shameful Iran deal, the media applauded Kerry who traveled behind Trump's State Department envoys undermining his polices with world leaders. Where's Sally Yates and the progressive cry for violating the Logan act?

Progressives have completely lost their minds, calling Trump a Russian agent. Really? Trump has done more to push back on Russia in one year than Obama did in eight. Trump reinstated the Eastern Europe nuclear defense system, sanctioned them, undermined their economy by decreasing the price of oil, bombed Syria killing 200 Russians, expelled their diplomats etc. Trump did not just give blankets to Ukraine, he sold weapons to Ukraine. Regardless, the progressives want to further undermine and embarrass him by demanding the notes from his meeting with Putin so other world leaders will be reluctant to confide with him in the future. Using repressive tolerance, the progressive ruling class is trying to stifle the president's authority by claiming that everything he does is oppressive or a conflict of interest (e.g., investigating corruption, speaking with world leaders, meeting with his AG, securing our borders, tweeting to the public, protecting our citizens against a virus, etc.)

Why single out the Russians for election meddling? Is it because Obama was rebuffed trying to make a deal with Putin after his election? The Progressive/Mexican collusion has done more to influence our elections than the Russians have ever done, and the media encourage it. The progressives support 50 Mexican consulate offices, an endless distribution of their Matricula Consular cards, la Raza's 20 plus organizations and two million Latinos that invade our country annually. They have invited the Mexico City Mayor, now Mexico's Foreign Minister, Marcelo Ebrard, to the U.S during the 2016 elections to call Trump 'Hitler' and 'racist' on several television and news broadcasts. Imagine if Trump invited Putin to go on television in the U.S. to call Hillary a fascist during the election. The ruling class would have immediately called for another special counsel and/or demanded another impeachment vote.

Progressives celebrate while Mexico pushes their citizens to become dual U.S /Mexican citizens and have paid \$150 million to encourage Mexicans to continue speaking Spanish while in the U.S. Progressives celebrate while Mexico pays lawyers to clog our deportation courts to prevent Mexican deportations. China has published political content in our major newspapers. Asia, the Middle East, our allies and virtually every country on the globe has lobbied or used media to

influence our elections and/or policies in one way or the other throughout our history. Still the progressives and the media only advance the Russian Hoax.

For progressives, nothing is ever over. They will never allow their opponents to govern or implement policies. They are always right, never wrong (e.g., Russian collusion.) If they lose an election, it is unfair, they sue, create special counsels, demand another election or a recount until they win. To win, they will commit voter fraud, harvest ballots, import illegals, change the electoral college, the voting districts, rules, etc. If they lose, they will throw tantrums, scream 'racism,' riot, create chaos, etc., to prevent the winners from governing until they regain power. If you oppose them and run for office, they will destroy you and your family (e.g., Trump, Kavanaugh, Nielsen, etc.) If you do not run, they are free to open the borders, seize your property, implement Marxist polices and destroy our country, not for good, but for power.

Political Witticisms

Alexander Hamilton- "Safety from external danger is the most powerful director of national conduct. Even the ardent love of liberty will, after time, give way to its dictates."

Apache old saying: "Death comes anyway, why go meet him?"

Aristotle- "You will never do anything in this world without courage. It is the greatest quality of the mind next to honor."

Ben Franklin- "That the document be administered a number of years until the people reject liberty in favor of tyranny."

Duke of Wellington- "As Lord Chesterfield said of the generals of his day, 'I only hope when the enemy reads the list of their names, he trembles as I do."

Eric Hoffer- "Propaganda does not deceive people; it merely helps them deceive themselves."

Franklin D. Roosevelt- "In politics, nothing happens by accident. If it happens, you can bet it was planned that way."

George Bernard Shaw- "Progress is impossible without change and those who cannot change their minds cannot change anything." Q: Is all progress and change good? Must all minds be changed?

George Bernard Shaw- "The reasonable man adapts himself to the world; the unreasonable one persists in trying to adapt the world to himself. Therefore, all progress depends on the unreasonable man."

George Bernard Shaw- "Power does not corrupt men; fools, however, if they get into a position of power, corrupt power."

George Bernard Shaw- "Beware of false knowledge; it is more dangerous than ignorance."

George Orwell- "In our age there is no such thing as 'keeping out of politics.' All issues are political issues, and politics itself is a mass of lies, evasions, folly, hatred, and schizophrenia."

John Adams- "Liberty lost is lost forever."

Jonathan Swift- "A lie can travel halfway around the world while the truth Is putting on Its shoes."

Joseph Stalin- "Ideas are more powerful than guns. We would not let our enemies have guns, why should we let them have ideas."

Lord Acton- "Power tends to corrupt, and absolute power corrupts absolutely."

Malcolm X – "To me, the thing that is worse than death is betrayal. You see I could conceive death, but I could not conceive betrayal."

Margaret Thatcher- "Socialists cry 'power to the people' and raise the clenched fist as they say it. We all know what they really mean- power over the people, power to the state."

Mark Twain- "There are basically two types of people: People who accomplish things, and people who claim to have accomplished things. The first group is less crowded."

Milton Freeman- "Those people who put equality before liberty are not likely to have much of either. Those people that put liberty before equality are likely to have a large measure of both."

Niccolo Machiavelli – "He who wishes to be obeyed must know how to command"

Ronald Reagan: 40th anniversary speech Pointe Hoc Normandy, June 6,1984- "You all knew that some things are worth dying for. One's country is worth dying for, and democracy worth dying for, because it's the most deeply honorable form of government ever devised by man."

Teddy Roosevelt- "If I could find the man responsible for my misery, I'd give him a swift kick in the pants; but I wouldn't be able to sit down for a while."

Tennessee Williams- "The only thing worse than a liar is a liar that's also a hypocrite."

Voltaire- "In general, the art of government consists of taking as much money as possible from one class of citizens to give to another."

Will Rogers- "I don't make jokes. I just watch the government and report the facts."

Winston Churchill- "The truth is incontrovertible. Malice may attack it, ignorance may decide it, but in the end, there it is."

Winston Churchill- "Do not be fobbed off with mere personal success or acceptance. You will make all kinds of mistakes; but as long as you're generous and true, and also fierce, you cannot hurt the world or even seriously distress her."

Winston Churchill- "The price of greatness is responsibility."

Winston Churchill- "Socialism is a philosophy of failure, the creed of ignorance and the gospel of envy".

Vladimir Lenin- "The goal of socialism is communism."

Books

An Inconvenient Deception (by Roy Spencer) Debunking Al Gore climate change

Climate Depot (by Marc Morano)- climate change

Civics' lesson we the people pre-amble (thedreyfussinitiative.org)

Hate Crime Hoax (by Wilfred Reilly)

Hidden in plain sight (by Pete Wallerson) - housing crises of 2008

New Deal or Raw Deal? (by Burton Folsom Jr.) How FDR's economic legacy damaged America

Obstruction of Justice (by Luke Rosiak)- Dems coverup, Pakistani IT man, Imran Awan, computer theft of Dems personal info. and money. (Pelosi, Jeff Sessions, Debbie Wassermann Schultz)

Reckless Endangerment (by Gretchen Morgenson) - housing crises of 2008

Reflections on the revolution in France (by Edmund Burke)

Righteous indignation (by Breitbart)- Repressive tolerance.

The Forgotten Man (by Amity Shlaes)- History of the great depression

The Human City (by Joel Kotkin)

The War on Cops and The Diversity Delusion (by Heather Mac Donald)

weatherbell.com (Joe Bastardi) – chief meteorologist regarding climate change